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(Convenience translation of independent auditors’ report originally issued in Turkish)

Aksigorta Anonim $irketi
Independent auditors’ report as of December 31, 2014

To the Board of Directors of Aksigorta A.$.

1. We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Aksigorta A.$. (“the Company”) as of
December31, 2014 and the related statement of income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Company Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The Company management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the prevailing accounting principles and standards set out as per the
insurance legislation. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
systems relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the regulations regarding auditing principles set by insurance
legislation and the Independent Auditing Standards which are a part of Turkish Auditing Standards
promulgated by the Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA).Those
standards require that the ethical principles are complied with and that the audit is planned and
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The independent audit procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessment, the independent auditors
consider internal systems relevant to the entity. However our purpose is not expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but to consider the relation of the financial
statements prepared by the Company management and the internal systems in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

5. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial position of
Aksigorta A.~. as of December31, 2014 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the prevailing accounting principles and standards (Note 2) set out as
per the insurance legislation.

A ,y,embe, ñrm of [‘nit & Young Global Limited
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Emphasis of matter

6. As explained in Note 23.3, as of June 24, 2014, Tax lnspection Board of TC. Ministry of Finance has
Iaunched a limited tax investigation related ta the Banking and Insurance Transactian Tax for the
years 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and as a consequence of the tax inspection, tax of TL 1,8 million
and tax penaity of TL 2,8 million for the year 2009 , tax of TL 2 million and tax penalty of TL 3
miilion for the year 2010 , tax of TL 3 million and tax penalty of TL 4,6 million for the year 2011 and
tax of TL 4,3 million and tax penalty of TL 6,4 million for the year 2012 and in total tax and tax
penaity of 27,9 million related to Banking insurance Transaction Tax were imposed to the Company.
The Company has not booked any provision in the financial statements since it beiieves that its
practice is in compliance with the regulations. On January 16, 2015, the Company filed a
reconciliation request to the Large Taxpayers Oftice Commission of Reconciliation for the tax and tax
penalty for the year 2009 and is currently preparing ta file a similar reconciliation request regarding
the tax and tax penaity for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012

Additional paragraph for convenience transiation to Engiish:

7. As of December 31, 2014, the accounting principles described in Note 2 to the accompanying
financiai statements difter from international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board. The effects of difterences between accounting principles
and standards described in Note 2 and IFRS have not been quantified in the accompanying financial
statements. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the
financiai position and resuits of operations of the Company in accordance with IFRS.

Report on independent Auditor’s Responsibilities Arising from Other Regulatory Requirements

1) in accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC”) 6102, the
independent Auditors Report on the Eady identification of Risk System and Committee was
submited ta the Board of Directors of the Company on Februaıy 13,2015.

2) in accordance with Article 402 TCC, no significant matter has come to our attention that ieads us to
believe that the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period January 1 - December 31, 2014 is
not in compbance with the code and provisions of the Company’s articies of association in reiation to
financial reporting.

3) in accordance with Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors has provided us with the required
explanations and documents.

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A rn eimtrrnst £ Young Globai Limited

(2)

Turkey

member lfrm ol Ernot a Young Global Limilod
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE COMPANY’S REPRESENTATION ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

We confirm that the accompanying financial statements and notes to these financial statements as of
31 December 2014 are prepared in accordance with the accounting principles and standards as set out
in the insurance legislation and in conformity with the provisions of the Decree on “Financial
Reporting of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension Funds” and our Company’s
accounting records.

Istanbul, 13 February 2015

I
Erkan SAHiNLER
Chief Financial Officer
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TL.”) unless otherwise Indicated.)

AKSIGORE4 ANONIM SIRKEn
DEtAILS]) lsAL.ANU~ SHaF

AS S EIS
I- CURR~4TASSEIS Audited Audited

Note Current Period Pre.ious Period
(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)

A- Cash and Cash Equivalents 819.757.469 901.772.398
1-Cash - -

2- Cheques Received - -

3- Banks 14 623.405482 732.774.746

4- Cheques Given and Payment Orders C-) - -

5- Receivables From Credit Cards ~~ith Bank Guarantee Due Less Than Three Months 14 196.35t.987 168.997.652

6- Other Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

B- Financial Assets and Investments with Risks on Policy Holders 11_i 278.999.622 167.948.572

I- FinancialAtsettAvailable for Sale 11_i 271.703.627 161.409.883

2- Financial Assets Held to Maturity - -

3- Financial Assets Held for Trading - -

4- Loans - -

5- Provision for Loans (-) -

6- Investments i~4th Risks on Policy Holders 11.1 7.295.995 6.538.689

7- Equity Shares - -

8- Impairment in Value of Financial Assets (-) - -

C- Receivables From Main Operations 12.1 324.806.900 295.482.821

I - Receivables From Inturanee Operations 12.1 327.843.304 298.597.419

2- Provision for Receivables From Insurance Operations (-3 12.1 (6.876.269) (7.511.240)

3- Receivables From Rcinsuranee Operations -

4- Provision for Receivables From Reinsuranec Operationt (-) 12.1 - -

5- Cash Deposited For Insurance & Reinsurance Companies 12.1 30.954 30.954

6- Loans to Policyholders - -

7- Provision for Loans to Policyholders (-) - -

8- Receivables from Pension Operation - -

9- Doubtful Receivables From Main Operations 12.1 64.075.809 55.089.273

10- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables From Main Operations (-) 12.1 (60.266.898) (50.723.585)

D- Due from Related Parties 71.723 67.314

I - Due from Shareholders - -

2- Due from Affiliates -

3- Due from Subsidiaries - -

4- Due from Joint Ventures -

5- Due from Personnel - -

6- Due from Other Related Parties 45 71.723 67.314

7- Rediscount on Receivables Due from Related Parties (-) - -

8- Doubtful Receivables Doe from Related Parties - -

9- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables Due from Related Parties (-) - -

E. OIlier Receivables 7.880.125 5.792.454

1- Leasing Receivables - -

2- Unearned Leasing Interest Income (-) - -

3- Deposits and Guarantees Given 167.026 106.174

4- Other Receivables 47 7.713.099 5.686.280

5- Discount on Other Receivables (-) - -

6- Other Doubtful Receivables - -

7- Provisions for Other Doubtful Receivables (-3 -

F- Prepaid &penses and Income Accruals 4.2.2 133.164.145 124.153.715

I- Deferred Commission Expenses 128.065.399 122.435.253

2. Accrued Interest and Rent Income - -

3- Income Accruals - -

4- Other Prepaid Expenses 47 5.098.746 1.718.462

G- Other Current Assess 6.510.652 2.189.899

1- Inventories 22 22

2- PrepaidTaxes and Funds 6.284.761 2.189.877

3- DeferredTax Assets - -

4- Business Advances 121.896 -

5- Advances Given to Personnel 103.973 -

6. Stock Count Differences

7- Other Current Assets - -

8- Provision for Other Current Assets (-) - -

1- Total Current Assets 1.571.190.636 1.497.407.173

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (TL.”) unless otherwise indicated.)

ARSAGORTA ANONAM SIRKEII

0ErAa~ BALANCE SHl~fr

ASS ETh

B- NON CURREsSTASSEIS Audited Audited

Note Current Period Presious Period
(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)

A- Receivables From Main Operations -

1- Receivables From Insurance Operations - -

2- Provision for Receivables From Insurance Operations (-) - -

3- Receivables From Reinsurance Operations - -

4- Provision ror Receivables From Reinsuranee Operations C-) - -

5- Casts Deposited for Insurance & Reinsurance Companies - -

6- Loans to Policyholders - -

7- ProvIsion for Loans to Policyholders C-) - -

8- Receivables From Pension Opertstions - -

9- Doubtful Receivables from Main Operat ions - -

10-Provision for Doubtful Receivables from Main Operations - -

B- Due from Reinted Parties; - -

1- Due from ~sarcholdcrs - -

2- Due from Affiliates - -

3- Due from Subsidi aries. - -

4- Due from Joint Ventures. - -

5- Due from Personnel - -

6- Due from Other Related Parties - -

7- Discount on Receivables Due from Reizsted Parties (-) - -

8- Doubtful Receivables Due from Related Parties - -

9- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables Due from Related Parties (-) - -

C- OIlier Receivables - -

1- Leasing Receivables - -

2- Unearned Leasing Interest Income (-) - -

3- Deposits and Osnrantees Given - -

4- Other Receivables - -

5- Discount on Other Receivables C-) - -

o- other Doubtful Receivables - -

7- Provis ions for Other Doubtful Receivables (-) - -

0-li nancIal Assets 7-961-251 7.961.251

1— lovestments In Associates. — -

2- Affiliates 9, 11.4 30.tI6.653 3u.tto.653

3- CapItal Commitments to Afoliates C-) - -

4-Subsidiaries - -

5— Capital Commitments to Subsidiaries C—) — -

6- Joint Ventures - -

7- Capital Commit nsents to Joint Ventures C.) - -

8- Financial Assets and Investments with Risks on Policy Holders - -

9-OtherpinanclalAssets - -

tO- Diminution In Value of Financial Assets C-) 4.2.2, 11.4 (22.155.402) (22.155.402)

£- flsngtble fixed Assets 25.369.620 11.374.660

t- lnvesttnent Properties 7 54t. 121 844.152

2. DiminutIon In Value for Inveslment Properties. (-) - -

3. OvnserOecupledPropertics 6 2.465.348 8.270.093

4. Machinery and Rqulpmenls - -

5- Purni Lures and Fixtures. 6 t4.476.330 2t.364.536

6- Vehicles 6 - -

7- Other Tangible Assets (Including Leasehold I’nprovcnscntgi 6 t8.31 2.709 t.122.357

8- LeasedTangibleFixedAssets 6 35t.395 351.395

9- Accumulated Depreciation C-) 6,7 (10.805.787) (20.577873)

10- Advances Paid for Tangible Fixed Assets (Including Construcilon us Progresses) 28.504

F-Intangible fixed Assets 25.850.207 19.986.929

I- Rights 8 28.879.266 t8.183.940

2- Goodssilt

3- Establishment Costs - -

4- Research and Development Hxpenses - -

6- other Intangible Assets - -

7- Accumulated Amortizations C-) 8 (15.246.083) (12.34t.338)

8-Advances. Regarding Intangible Assets 8 12.217.024 14.144.327

G- Prepaid ~penses and Income Accrual’.- 1.784.100

I- Deferred Commission Expenses -

2- Accrued Interest and Rent Income - -

3- Other PrepaidExpenses 47 1.784.100 -

H- Other Non-current Assets 9.024.367 10.534.419

I-Effective Foreign Currency Accounts - -

2- Foreign Currency Accounts~ - -

3- Inven tories

4-PrepaidTaxesandFunds - -

5-Dcferred Tax Assets 35 9.024.367 10.334.419

6- Other Non-current Assets -

7- Other Non-current AsseLs Amortization (-) . -

8- Provision for Other Non—current Assets C—) — —

U- Total Non-current Assets 69.989.545 49.857.259

IDTAL ASSEIS (I+Th 1.641J80J81 1.547.264.432

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othei-wise indicated.)

AICSiGORTA ANONIM SIRKEn
DE~A1LED BALANCE SH~~

LIABILI1US

m-SHORTflMLiABILflThS Audited Audited

Note Current Period Previous Period

(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)
A-Borrowings - -

1- Loans to Financial Inatitutions - -

2- Finance Leaae Payables - -

3- Deferred Finance Leaae Borroa4ng Costs (-) - -

4- Current Portion ofLongTerm Borro~vings - -

5- Principal. Installments and Interests on Issued Bills (Bonds) - -

6- Other Financial Assets Issued - -

7- Value Differences on Issued Financial Assets (-) - -

8- Other Financial Borro~vings (Liabilities) - -

B-Payables From Main Operations 19.1 108.035.614 104.789.191
I- Payables Due to Insurance Operations I 9.1 108.035.614 104.789191
2- Payables Due to Reinsurance Operations - -

3- Cash Deposited by Insurance & Reinturance Companies - -

4- Payables Due to Pension Operations - -

5- Payables from Other Operations - -

6- Rediscount on Other Payables From Main Operations (-) - -

C- Due to Related Parties 344.736 527.168
t- Due to Soareholders 1 2.2.45 t.145
2- Due to Affiliates - -

3- Due to Subsidiaries - -

4- Due to Joint Ventures - -

5. Due to Personnel 343.591 527.168
6- Due to Other Related Parties - -

D- Other Payables 19.1 39.282.651 43.075.754
I- Deposits and Guarantees Received 19.1
2- Due to SSI regarding Treatment Expenaes 19.1 t0.522.958 15.622.370
3- Other Payables 19.1 28.759.693 27.453.384
4- Discount on Other Payables C-) - -

U- Insurance ¶bchnical Reserves 880.164.352 763.083.383
I- Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net 20 566.154.357 539.546.893
2- Unexpired Risk Reserves- Net 20 10.218.793 9.189.638
3- Mathematical Reserves - Net - -

4- OutstandingClaims Reserve - Net 4.1,20 303.791.202 214.346.852

5- Provision for Bonus and Discounts - Net - -

6- Other Technical Reservet - Net - -

F- Taxes and Other Liabilities and Relevant Provisions 14.507.838 19.841.340
I- Taxes and Dues Payable 11.494.317 11.030.542
2- Social Socurity Premiums Payable 231 1.327.563 1.347.006
3- Overdue, Deferred or By Installment Taxes and Other Liabilities . -

4- Other Taxes and Liabilities 4.977 7.734
5- Corporate Tax Liability Provision on Period Profit 35 7.541.703 25.734.660
6- Prepaid Taxes and Othtr Liabilities on Period Profit C-) 35 (5.860.722) (18.278.602)

7- Provisions for Other Taxea and Liabilities - -

G- Provisions for Other Risks 17324032 17.530.429
I- Provision for Employment Termination Benefits - -

2- Pension Fund Deficit Provision -

3- Provisions for Costs 19.1. 23.4 17.924.032 17.530.429
H- Deferred Income and Bpense Accruals 19.1 29.577.467 28.724.910
I- DeferredCommission Income 19.1 29.577.467 28.724.910
2- Expense Accruals -

3- Other Deferred Income -

I. Other Short Tarm Liabilities - -

I- Deferred Tax Liability -

2- Inventory Count Differences -

3- Other Soort Term Liabilities -

ifi. Total Short Term Liabilities 1.089.836.690 977.572.175

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AKS1GORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AKSIGORTA ANONIM SIRIcEIi
DEFAILED BALANCE SHEEr

LIAR iLflThS
IV-LONG’IERMLIABILHWS Audited Audited

Note Current Period Previous Period
(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)

A-Borrowings - -

1- Loans to Financial Institutions - -

2- Finance Lease Payables - -

3- Deferred Finance Lease Borroudng Costs (-) - -

4- Bonds Issued - -

5- Other Issued Financial Assets - -

6- Value Differences on Issued Financial Assets (-) - -

7- Other Financial Borrovings (Liabilities) - -

B- Payables From Main Operations - -

I- Payables Due to Insurance Operations - -

2- Payables Due to Reinsurance Operations - -

3- Cash Deposited by Insurance & Reinsurance Companies - -

4- Payables Due to Pension Operations - -

5- Payables from Other Operations - -

6- Discount on Other Payables From Main Operations (-) - -

C- Due to Related Parties - -

1- Due to Siareholders - -

2- Due to Affiliates - -

3- Due to S.ibsidiaries - -

4- Due to Joint Ventures - -

5- Due to Personnel - -

6- Due to Other Related Parties - -

D- Other Payables 19.1 - 1.867.930
1- Deposits and Guarantees Received - -

2- Due to 581 regardingTreatment Expenses 19.1 - t.867,930
3- Other Payables - -

4- Discount on Other Payables (-) - -

E- Insurance Thehnical Reserves 40.549.290 32.891.128
I- Unearned Premiums Reserve - Net - -

2- Unexpired Risk Reserves - Net - -

3 Mathematical Reserves - Net 17.2,20 1.972,202 2.167.174
4- Outstanding Claims Reserve - Net - -

$ Provision for Bonus and Discounts - Net - -

6- Other Technical Reserves- Net 20 38.577.088 30.723.954
F- Other Liabilities and Provisions - -

I- Other Liabilities - -

2- Overdue, Deferred or By Installment Other Liabilities -

3’ Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals - -

G- Provisions for Other Risks 2.813302 2.244.706
I- Provision for Employment Termination Benefits 22 2,813.302 2.244.706
2- Provisions for Employee Pension Fund Deficits - -

H- Deferred Income and Expense Accruals - -

1- Deferred Commission Income - -

2- Expense Accruals - -

3- Other Deferred Income - -

I- Other Long Term Liabilities - -

1- Deferred Tax Liability - -

2- Other Long Term Liabilities - -

IV- Total Long Term Liabilities 43362.592 37.003.764

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AT DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AKSiGORTh ANONiM SiRKETI
DETAILED BALANCE SHFET
SIIARIMOLDIRS’ Ef~TiflY

V-SIIARFIIOLDFRSEQTJflY Audited Audited

Note Current Period Previous Period
(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)

A- Paid in Capital 306.900.060 306.000.000
I- (Nominal) Capital 15 306.000.000 306.000.000
2- Unpaid Capital (.) - -

3- Positive Inflation Adjustment on Capita] - -

4- Negative Inflation Adjustment on Capital (-) - -

5- Unregistered Capital -

B- Capital Reserves 91.155.206 4.460.787
I- Equity Share Premiums -

2- Cancellation Profits of Equity ~ares - -

3- Profit on Sale to be Transferredto Capital 15.1 91.155.206 4.460.787
4- Translation Reserves - -

5- Other Capital Reserves - -

C- Profit Reserves 80.205.060 62.313.603
I- Legal Reserves 80.665.151 68.138.419
2- Statutory Reserves 62 62
3- Extraordinary Reserves
4- Special Funds (Reserves) 22, 34.5 377.964 (512.446)
5- Revaluation of Financial Assets 11.6, 16.1 (838.117) (5,312.432)
6- Other Profit Reserves
D- Previous Years’ Profits 13.151 139.064
I- Previous Years’ Profits 13.151 139.064
E- Previous Years’ Losses (-)

1- Previous Years’ Losses ‘ -

F. Net Profit of the Period 30607.482 159.775.039
I- Net Profit of the Period 26.385.487 73.080.620
2- Net Loss of the Period (.) - -

3- Net Income not subject to distribution 37,47 4.221.995 86.694.419
Total Shareholders’ Equity 507.980.899 532.688.493

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity (1II+W÷V) 1.641.180.181 1.547.264.432

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31,2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“IL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

ARSIGORTA ANONIM ~IRKTrTI

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
A.sWuad Anithed

I-TECHNICAL PART NnIe Lt•rreal reel-op FevieiI’ar
01611)2014-31fl2i3014 I1m152013-31/12)2013

A- Non-LIre Teclmacot Income L278.176.900 1.094.775.516
I’ Earned icremiuncs (NesorkeinuurerShisre) I.)90.007.305 1.035.449.376
1.1 - Written I~remiss oat (Net of i(ethsurer Share) 34 1.217.961.897 I.I13.502.913
1.1.1 Gross W ritlenl9e (+1 1.713.193.950 1.536.101.954
1.1,2- Ceded a5remlams 10 Re Insurers (_) 1716 (476.015.245) (387810.439)
1.1.5. Ceded premIums 10 511 (-1 17-16 (19.616.101) (24.781.602)
1.2- Change in Unearsted l5rn miums Re nerve (Nd or Reinslnrers Shares and Reserves Co rrie d ioovrard) (+1.) (26.925.437) (78.884.772)
1.2.1 . Unearned l’reosiunss Reserve (-5 (69.310.417) (129678.297)
8.2.2- coinsurance Shore or Unearned Premiums Re serve (+) 17.16 41.010.190 45.291-9614
8.2.3- 551 or Unearned i5remiiamu Reserve (+) 17.16 (5.555.910) 5.501.557
8.3. Changes in Unespare a Rinks Ira uerve (Nat or Ithinnurer Ml are and Re larval Carried Ferward)(+5-) (1.029.151) 821.325
1.3.1 - Unexpired Risks Re nerve (.5 11.732.571 (18.683.391)
1.3.2 - Rainsuranee Shore or Unexpired loslo Reserve (5-) 87.16 (13.761.72)) 19313.526
2 Isvasbnanl Ineom eTransre red rrom Non-Techni Cal i5ar( 72.217.516 51342.105
SOther1eehnlc 51 income (Net or Reinsurer Shere) - -

3.1- Cross OlIsor Ieehnleallneome (+) - -

.5.2- Reinasoonce Share or Other ‘I echnical Income (.) -

4. Accrued Subrogation and Salvage Income (+) 14.782.279 7.984.025
II- Noon-Life Tee lto.ieol Expeinle (-) (L235.918.6l6) (993.496.771)
I- Total Claims (Net nr Reinsurer Sisare) (862.197.957) (660.434.361)
1.1- ClaIms laid (Ne( or l(einturershare) (774.772.082) (641.667.703)
1.1.1 - Cross Claims l’ald (-) (882.981.432) (767.103.599)
1.1.2 - ldeinnssranae Share or Calms PaId (+5 07.06 109.213.251 125.436.096
1.2- changet Ia’ Oulalondlog Calms Re nerve (Net or Reinsurer Share nod l(eserves Carried Forward) (+1-) 29 (81,125,875) (18.766.6514)
1,2.1 - Ousaionding claintsReaarve (.) (100.106.191) 1.011.460
1.2.3- Reiainssraa505hare or Oulstisndlng Claims Reserve (5-) 17.16 11.910,316 (26.7714.118)
2- Cltanges in lion’, s and Discount Reserve (Net or Reinsurer Sh are and Reserves Carried I500ward) (t5-)
2.8- 1jan55 and Diu000nl Rn nerve (.5
2.2- l(eiil suranae SlIare or Isanna and Disc coos’ Reserve (5-) - -

3-Changes In Qlher Technical Re serves (Net or Reinsurer Share and Re aervea Carried Forward) (+5-) (7.853.134) (8.534.256)
4. OperIsling Expenses (-) 33 (324.707.016) (387.013.182)
5. Chlsnges In Mathematical Re,ervea (NCL of Reinsurer S hare and Iceservea Carried Forward) (+5-)
5.1- Mathematical Reserves (.)

5,2- Rellssuralsde Share or Mnthentaticel Reacevet (+) -

6.- OIlier I’eelsnic ol Expenses (.5 (40.530.439) (37.534.972)
6,1.- Groat Otharreahnieal Expenses 5.) (40.530.439) (37.524.972)
6,2.- Relosuranoes hare or Other Ieehnlea I Expenses (+1 - -

C- Null LI re Tee lunieni Net moral (A-In) 42.111.284 101.278.745
0 Lire Terlullcal 110:0118 136.329 1613010
I- Earned l’eeiniansn (Netof Reinnurer Share) 17.711 27.695
1.1- W rosen I’re miuma (Net of ReStorer Share) 34 17.722 37.110
1.1.1 - Cross Writlen Prelo ionic (5-) 21.346 36.031
1.1.2 - Coded premiums to Reinnorers 5-) 17.16 (3,814) 48.921)
1.2- Change In Unearned I1remiuios Re serve (Net or laeinturers Shares and Reserves carried Forward) (+5-) (II) 585
1.2.1- Unearned Premium Reserves (_) ((0 2.128
1.2.2- Unearned Premium deserves I(ein,urer Share 5+) i7.16 (871) (1.543)
I.)- Changes In Unexpired Risks Renerve (Nd or Reinsamer Slleme and Reserves Coerled tsaesasard)(+I-) - -

1.3.1- Unexpired Iisiskeserves (-3
1.3,2-Unexpired Risks Reter~es I(elnsueer Share
2’ Lire Isranch lnvesooest Income 285.658 806.691
3- Unrealized Income from lnventoaenta
4.0th or TecIlnic al Income (Net or Reinsurer S hare) (+1-) (167.140) 37.414
4.8- Gross Ooser’I’echnig al Income (+1’) (167.140) 37.414
4,2- i(einnuronge Share or Olher’rechnle el Incnme (+5.) - -

5. Asorned Sahrognsian and Re cage Income (+5
Re Li re Ieei,,,irati Espeneme 1698.321) (843.745)
l_ ‘rosal Claims (Net or Reinnurer Share) (454,219) (869420)
II- Claim OF aid (Net or Reinsurer Share) (491,001) (837.920)
1.1.1- Goon-v Qaimn Paid (.3 (498,001) (837.920)
1.8.2- ClaIms Paid Reinsarer Share (+1
1.2- Chnn8es In Ouotanding Claims l’rovhions (Net or Reinsurers hare and Re aervea Carried 15-seWard) (+1-) 29 43.782 (31.500)
1.2.1 - 0 usstandissl Calms Renerve (-) 43.829 (29325)
1.3.3- Rninaiuranee Shore or Osslatonding Claims Reserve (+3 17.16 (47) (2.075)
3-Changesin IlonosahdDlsdountl(enerve (Netor Reinsurer Sharennsl Renerves Caoriedi5arvvard)(+5-)
3,8- lionos and Diacouni Resnrve 5,)
2.2- Reinsurnnce Share or 1jan05 and Discount Ithnerve (5-)

3. Clsisnges In Mathemesunl Re serves (Net or Reinnsrer Share and Reserves Carried ForWard) (+5-) 216.190 430.069
3.1- Mathnmatical Reserves (.) 216,017 430.502
3.1.1’ ActuarIal Mathematical Reserve (-) 422.767 673.570
3.1.3- leorit Share Reserve ( Reserves ror Lire Insurance 110 acienlnctudi 15 anventnlent RisIcI (-) (206,710) (243.069)
3.2’ Reinsurer Share or MathematIcal Reserves (+1 173 (333)
3.2.1- Reinsorance Share or Aeluarlal Ma thesetalie at Reserve (+) 87) (333)

3.2.2’ Reinsurance Share or Front Share Reserve ( Reserves ror Lire Insurance Policiea One lading invesloetnos 01500 C-) ‘ -

4- changes in Othnr Technical Re serves (Net or Reinsurer Stsere and Reserves carried Forward) (+1’) ‘ -

3. Operating Expenses (‘1 32 (451.9)5) (403.646)
6’ Invesonens Expenses (‘3
7. Unrealsead Lmsea from lnveslmnnlss (-1 -

8_ Inveson ens Income ‘rransreeessj 50 Nun- .rechnieallars(.) (8,357) (848)
1d. Lire Teshnsls.d Prufls ID-k) (562.092) 08.055
O.IndlsId.ual Retire.nmnu Tecludeaul Iiseoing - -

I- lund Managem ens Fee -

2. ManagemensFeeDedudlion -

3, Inilsal Conlribulion l’e a -

4. ManagementS ~ In Case or ‘l’eseaporary Sinpennion -

5. Witholdieig las
6’ Incenane in Marhel Value or CapllalCommilmentAdvasoes -

7-0th er’Icchnic at Income - -

H- indlvldstul Retarrngisl Teeiusie’d Repeensa
I- Fund Managcmens Espentea (‘2 -

2’ 0 ecrease in Marinas Value or Capital Comm ilenens A dvancen F) - -

3’ Operating F‘spaniel (-3 -

4. Ooser’O’echnical Expense (-3 - -

I— Individual RetIrement Tectesleul P,-orlt (C —H) - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AESIGORTA ANONIM 9IRKEII

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

1-NONTECHNICALPART Nob Auduted AudIted

CurrentPerlod PrIu.e6PnrIod

0110112014-31/1212014 01I01I2013.3111212013

C. Men Lire T,cle,IcoI ProW (A.0) 42.188284 101.278.745

F- urn Teelmicul Profit (13.1* (562.092) 10.055

I. Individual Rntirenwot TecimlcelPrnflb (C-Il) -

J. Tubal Teehnicui ProIlt (Cs-F+l) 41.626.192 101.296.800

K- lnvestn8nt Inc,,nw 128.169.257 97.747.600

I— Income Corn lioa,eloI I,ve,Ese,nt 26 5I.B91237 41249211

2- loonme from Isomer I4oaoela I Investment, 26 2.152.607 1.427.773

3’ Revaluation or rnaoclol Inse ‘Omens, 26 20.489,470 8.257.167

4- Forelgo Exchange Gales 36 43.807.663 46.505201

5. Income from Arfilialen - —

6-locomerrom iobsidlonle,ood.loino Venture,

7- Income Received from land am5 EulOdiog 26 55.949 297.399

6- Income from I)eclvslivon 13 9,663,974

9- Otherlovo,Eoents

00- lnve,Ieeen,10eomenranorerredfromL]rei’ec100lealPor, 0,337 848

L- lns,,bnwnb EtIp000se) ~ (085.440.261) (04.738.444)

I- Inveotmeol Manofement E‘xperne, (including inlereo) (-3

2. Val,00lotiAllau,aoee of Inveolniontsl-)

3-Losses Oosaleool Inveolmenlo(-)

4- lovesuoroon locomo ‘l’caonferred to No,—Llfe’feehnlcnl l°arl (-) (73,387.306) (51.342.1105]

5- Losses from DerIvative, 9.)

6. I°sreti,. Exchange Loosen (.3 36 (37,303,268) (20.5Il.004)

7. Depreciation EvIl.‘neon (-1 (4670.677) (3.882.335)

0-Otherloveslmenl idxpellsIes&)

M- On her Ineem, and Rep,noes (41.) 47 (16.200.003) 70.200.713

I. Proshioo,, Acco,nn (+1-) 47 (15,696.586) (40.292.793)

2’l)lseounl account (+5-)

3’ Mandatory Itoetqualae Inoaranco Aee0001 (+5-) 47 403.204 267.461

4- I,fla,Seo Adjuilmenn Aee001tn (+5.)

5. Dereroed’Inv Asset Accounta(+I-) 35 (161,169) 4.400.546

6- Derecoed Tn Expense Accounts 9.) . -

7. 060cc It,come end Re venue, 47 6.707.228 116.241.189

8. (360cc Expense end Losses 9-) 47 (7.527.980) (8.495.6611)

9. Priorl’erlodlncense 47 -

to- Prier Perle,] Louue, 9-) -

N. Net Proflr S (lots’) 30.607.482 159.775.039

I- I’roritl(t.oos) He rooe Tax 31.149.115 105.509.699

2- Corporatn Tax LOablIlly I°eovlsloo 9-) 30 (7,541,703) (25.734.660)

3- Non I°rofll (Lose) 30.607.402 159.775.039

4- Inflation Adj,sunieol Aceouol

The accompanying notes fomi an integral part of these financial statements.
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AKS1GORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1- DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Urn (“TI..”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AKSiCORIA ANONIM SIRKEII
STATh~IEN1OFCIIANGFS lNa~Unv

(Audited)

Capital Equity Shores Omied Inflation Adjustment Traostslioo Other Resents and Net ProfiII(Loss) Proniocs Years
CURRF?ITPFRIOD by the Company (.) Remlualion of Financial Asuels on Capital Resents lxgal Resents Statutory Resents Relsised Fanhiego mr he Period ProrsU(I.osn) Total

I - Closing Balance or Prior Period (31/12/2013) 306 000 000 - (5312.432) - 60.13(419 62 3.940341 159.775.039 139.064 532.6(8.493

II - Amandements in Acrountinng Policy . . . . - . . . - -

Ill Current Balance (I + II) (01101/2014) 306.100.110 - (5312.432) - 68.131.419 62 3.948341 159.775.139 139.064 532.688.493

A-Capital increase (Al +A2) - . - . - - . . -

l-Ca~ - - - - - - - . - - -

2- Internal soteco . - - - - - - - - -

Is- Eepaley shares pszchased try ihe cesn~sssy . . - . . . . . . -

C- Income? (eapense) reeogslaed&ectly is the eqeity . - - - - . - 090.410 . . 191.410

I)- Revaluation or lisanrial assets (Nesle 16.1) . - 4.474.315 - - . . - . 4A74315

C- Translation reserves - - . . - . - -

F- Other income? (eapessen) - - - - - - - 06.694.419 - - 86.694.419

C- Inflation adjustment .lfferences - - - - - - - - - -

H- Periosloei proFit (Note 37) - - - - - - - - 30.607.402 - 30.607.482

I- Dividendsflotritosted - - - - - - - - (60.679.000) (60.679.800)

J-Transofer - - . - - 2526.732 - - (159.775.039) 60.553.087 (06.693.420)

II- Cloning Balance (31/12/2014) (l+A+B4t+D+EfF-sG+lt+I+J) 306.060.010 (831)17) . . 10.665.151 62 91.533.170 30.607.482 13.151 517.910.899

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial smtemenls
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 -DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AKSIGORTAA4.
AKSiGORTAANONIM$IRKEIi

sT.U}~lR6TOFCIlANCFS IN D3UHY

(Audited)

Capilal Fipsity Shares Owned Inflation Adjustment Translation Ocher Resenea and Net Profat((Loas) Presious Years
CURRR4TPFRIOD by the Company (.) Renluation of Financial Assets on capital Resents Legal Resents Statutory R000neo Retained Earnings for the Period Prof’uU(Looa) Total

I. Closing Balance orPrior Period (31(12)2012) 306.000.000 . 113.321 . . 62.767.114 62 4.460.707 41.672.723 1.513.576 423.597.652

II . Amaudements in Accounting Policy . . . . . . - - . . -

III . Current Balance (I + II) (01.91/2013) 306.100.000 . 123.320 . . 62.767.114 62 4.460.727 40.672.723 1.513.576 413.597,652

A- Cspiiat loceesse (Al + A2) . - - . . . . .

l-Cssh . . . . - - - .

2- lnlcmsl soteces - - - . - -

B- Eq.dty dotes pirchasol by the company - - - .

C- Incomel(csprnse) rccogoizcddiecetly is she eqsily - . . - - - (512.446) - - (512.446)

D- Reval.nliosoffsesncialassels(NuIe 16.1) - . (5.495.752) - - - - . - - (5.495352)

E- Tusoslaxian ,eazivcs — — - — - —

F- Other income / (expenses) . — —

(I- loflalios adjsstmenl thffcecnces — - - - — - . - — - —

H- Period net peals (Nate 37) - - - - - - - . 059.775.039 - 159.775.039

I- Ijivi&nd disiejixeed - - - . - - - - - (44.676,000) (44.676.000)

J- Transler - - - - - 5.371.235 - - (40.672.723) 43.301.400

go- closing Balance (31112/2013) (t+A+BiC+D+EfF+G+01+I+j) 306.000.000 . (5.312.432) - - 60.130.419 62 3.91t.341 059.775.039 139.064 532.602.493

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these financial statements
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AKSIGORTA A$.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1 - DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘IL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

AKSiCORTA ANONIM SIRKErI - -~

CASHFLOW STATThIENF
Audited Audited

Current Period Pre~ious Period
Note 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

A. CASH FLOWS FROM THE OPERATING ACI’IVlTIIS
I. Cash inflows fromthe insurance operations 1.338.513.033 1.306.412.498
2. Cash inflows from the reinsurance operations - -

3. Cash inflows from the pension operations - -

4. Cash outflows due to the insurance operations (-) (1.198.782.141) (1.052.154.816)
5. Cash outflows due to the reinsurance operations C-) - -

6. Cash outflows due to the pension operations C-) - -

7.Cashgeneratedfromtlieoperalingacthities (A1+A2+A3-A4-A5-A6) 139.730.892 254.257.682
8. Interest paynrnts (-) - -

9. Incon~ taxpaynrnts C-) (7.943.562) (20.926.741)
10. Other cash inflows 40.432.184 31.477.266
11. Other cash outflows C-) (80.738.073) (84.104.826)
12. Net cash generatedfromthe operating acti.ides 39 91.481.441 180.703.381

B. CASH FLOWS FROM TIlE INV1~S TING ACTIV1TIIS
1. Sale oftangible assets 3.195.392 132.751.601
2. Purchase of tangible assets (-) (17.190.352) (170.747)
3. Acquisition of financial assets (-) (121.286.342) (110.106.705)
4. Sale of financial assets (757.306) (295.714)
5. Interest received 83.963.981 55.070.664
6. Dividends received - -

7. Othercash inflows 37.222.462 17.382.674
8. Other cash outflows C-) (105.950.730) (86.290.444)
9. Net cash generated from the inwsting actiities 39 (120.802.894) 8.341.329

C. CASHFLOWS FROM THE FINANCING ACI’IVITIJ3S
I. Issue ofequity shares - -

2. Cash inflows from the loans to policyholders -

3. Payncnts of financial leases (-) - —

4. Dividend paid C-) 38 (60.679.800) (44.676.000)
5. Other cash inflows - -

6, Other cash outflows (-) - -

7. Cashgeneratedfromthe financing actiities 39 (60.679.800) (44.676.000)
D. EFFEETS OF E(CHANGERATEDIF1EW’.~CIiS ON CASH AND CASH
1X~U1VALENTS 6.424.395 17.004.198
E Net increasel(deerease) in cash and cash cc~,iialents (A12+B9+C7-t-D) (83.576.858) 161.372.908
F. Cash andeash ecpii.alents at the beginning of the period 14 899.783.192 738.410.283
G. Cash and cash egui’.alents at the end of the period (Ei-F) 14 816.206.333 899.783.191

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

1. General Information

1.1 Name of the Parent Company and the ultimate owner

Aksigorta Anonim Sirketi (“the Company”) is a subsidiary of Haci Omer Sabanci Holding A.5.
and Ageas Insurance International N.y. as of December 31, 2014. 38,02% (December 31,
2013: %38,02) of the Company is issued in Borsa Istanbul (“BIST”) (Note 2.14).

Agreement about the sale of %50 of 18.965.880.200 units of Aksigorta A.5. shares with TL
189.658.802 nominal value that belongs to HO. Sabanci Holding (“Holding”) portfolio was
signed with Ageas Insurance International N.y. at Febmary 18, 2011. At the date of July 29,
2011,9.482.940.100 units of Aksigorta A.5. shares that correspond to %50 of the Holding’s
portfolio have been transferred to Ageas Insurance International NV. with the sale price
(exculuding the corrections) of USD 220.029.000

1.2 The Company’s address and legal structure and address of its registered country and
registered office (or, if the Company’s address is different from its registered office, the
original location where the Company’s actual operations are performed)

The Company is a corporation, which was established in accordance with the requirements of
Turkish Commercial Code and registered in Turkey as at April 25, 1960. The headquarter of the
Company is located at Meclis-i Mebusan Cad. No:67 34427 Findikh/ Istanbul, has moved to
address ‘Poligon Cad. Buyalca 2 Site, No. 8, Kule 1, Kat: 0-6 34771 Umraniye — Istanbul’ as of
October 20, 2014.

1.3 Main operations of the Company

The Company’s main operations include insurance activities based on non-life insurance
branches, including primarily fire, marine, personal accident, engineering, agriculture and
health. The headquarters of the Company is in Istanbul. The Company has also 16 district
offices of which three of them are in Istanbul (Istanbul 1, Istanbul 2 and Istanbul 3), and one
each in Adana, Ankara, Antalya, Bursa, Izmir, Samsun, Denizli, Trabzon, Trakya, Gaziantep,
Eski~ehir, Kayseri and Kocaeli.

1.4 Details of the Company’s operations and nature of field of activities

Explained in Note 1.2 and Note 1.3.

1.5 Average number of the Company’s personnel based on their categories

January 1- January 1-
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Top executive
Manager and assistant manager
Specialist/responsible
Total

11 12
111 122
538 541
660 675

1.6 Remuneration and fringe benefits provided to top management

Remuneration and fringe benefits provided to top management such as; chairman and members
of the board of directors, managing director and assistant managing directors amount to TL
6.035.293 in total for the period January 1— December 31, 2014 (January 1-December31,
2013: TL 5.543.206).
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AKS1GORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

1. General Information (Continued)

1.7 Distribution keys used in the distribution of investment income and operating expenses in
the financial statements (personnel expenses, administration expenses, research and
development expenses, marketing and selling expenses and other operating expenses)

Within the framework of the Undersecretariat for the Treasury of the Prime Minister’s Office of
Republic of Turkey (“Undersecretariat for the Treasury”) Circular relating to Procedures and
Principles for Keys used in Financial Statements prepared in the scope of Uniform Chart of
Accounts for Insurance No. 2008/1, dated January 4, 2008, revenues generated by the Company
through investment of assets that provide non-life technical provisions were transferred from the
non-technical division to technical division. Other investment revenues were classified under
the non-technical division. While distributing to sub-branches the operating expenses
transferred to technical division, the last three-year weighted average of number of policies
generated in the current period, the premium amount written as gross and number of claims
were taken into account.

1.8 Stand-alone or consolidated financial statements

The accompanying financial statements comprise the stand-alone financial statements as of
December 31, 2014.

1.9 Name and other information of the reporting company and subsequent changes to the
prior balance sheet date

There has been no change in The Company’s name and other company informations presented
in Note 1.1, Note 1.2 and Note 1.3 as of the prior balance sheet date.

1.10 Subsequent Events

The Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2014 are approved and authorized for
issuance as of February 13, 2015 by the Board of Directors and signed by Chief Executive
Officer Ugur Gtilen, Chief Financial Officer Erkan Sahinler, Accounting Manager Gulnur Kurt
and Actuary Halil Kolba~i. Detailed information about this issue is disclosed in Note 46.

2. Summary of the Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used

Accounting Standards

In accordance with Article 50(a) of Section VII of the Capital Markets Law, insurance
companies have to comply with their own specific laws and regulations in matters of
establishment, auditing, supervision/oversight, accounting and financial reporting. Therefore,
the Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the prevailing accounting
principles and standards for Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension Funds set out
by the by T.C. Prime Ministry Undersecretariat of the Treasury and applicable regulations
required by the Insurance Law No: 5684 published in the Official Gazette No: 26522 on June
14, 2007.
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AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (‘IL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Insurance Chart of Accounts
included in the communiqué issued by the Treasury regarding the Insurance Chart of Accounts
and Prospects, published in the Official Gazette (No:25686) dated 30 December 2004
(Insurance Accounting System Communiqué No: 1). Content and the format of the financial
statements prepared and explanations and notes thereof are determined in accordance with the
Communiqué on Presentation of Financial Statements published in the Official Gazette
numbered 26851 dated 18 June 2008 and the Communique on the New Accounting Codes and
Presentation of Financial Statements published in the Official Gazette dated May 31, 2012 and
numbered 2012/7.

The Company accounts and recognizes its insurance technical provisions in its financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulation Regarding the Technical Reserves of Insurance,
Reinsurance and Pension Companies and the Assets to which These Reserves Are Invested,”
(“Regulation on Technical Reserves”) dated July 28, 2010 and published in official gazette
numbered 27655 and published in Oficial Gazzette dated 17 July 2012 numbered 28356
effective and the regulations issued for insurance and reinsurance companies by the
Undersecretariat of Treasury (“Treasury”).

As of January 1,2008, the Company accounts for its operations in accordance with the
“Regulation on Financial Reporting of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension
Companies” issued on July 14, 2007 and effective from January 1, 2008 within the framework
of this regulation a, Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”) and Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS”) issued by Turkish Accounting Standards Board (“TASB”) and other
regulations, communiqués and explanations issued by Treasury on accounting and financial
reporting. With reference to the notice of Treasury No. 9 dated February 18, 2008, “TAS 1-
Financial Statements and Presentation”, “TAS 27- Consolidated and Non-consolidated Financial
Statements”, “TFRS 1 - Transition to TFRS” and “TFRS 4- Insurance Contracts” were not
included in the scope of this application for the year 2008. In addition, as of March 31, 2009, the
companies are obliged to apply the Communiqué on the Preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statement of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension Companies”
(“Consolidation Communiqué”) dated December 31, 2009 and published in the Official Gazette
numbered 27097. According to the temporary Article 2 of the above mentioned Communiqué,
associations except insurance, reinsurance and pension companies are out of scope until March
31, 2010.

The Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Agency (KGK), established in
accordance with the Statutory Decree published in the Official Gazette dated November 2, 2011,
among its other powers and duties, for the purpose of ensuring that the financial statements of
those obliged to keep accounts in accordance with the laws they are subject to meet the needs,
are transparent, reliable, comprehensible, comparable and consistent; is authorized to create and
publish Turkish Accounting Standards (TASs) which are compliant with international standards;
to make secondary regulations regarding the implementation of the Turkish Accounting
Standards, to make necessary decisions and to grant approval on the regulations made by the
institutions and organizations authorized to make regulations within their domain.
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AKSiGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Pursuant to the Decree of the Assembly Regarding the Determination of the Scope of
Implementation of Turkish Accounting Standards” dated January 13, 2011 and numbered 6102;
institutions concerning public interest stated in the Public Service Commission numbered 660
shall be subject to independent audit within the framework of Article 397 of the Code 6102,
based on the decree of Board of Directors and entities mentioned in Paragraph 2 of Article 1534
of the same Code shall apply TAS in the preparation of their separate and consolidated financial
statements.

Entities established in order to execute at least one of the fields of activity projected in the
Banking Law dated October 19, 2005 and numbered 5411, set an example to the financial
statements to be prepared by companies obliged to apply TAS; except for development and
investment banks and financial holding companies as well as financial institutions established to
engage in insurance, individual retirement and capital market within the frame of the Capital
Market Law dated December 6, 2012 and numbered 6362, Insurance Law dated June 3, 2007
and numbered 5684, Individual Saving and Investment System Law dated March 28, 2011 and
numbered 4632 and regulations pertaining to their own clauses.

a. Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods

In accordance with the Undersecretariat of the Treasury’s statement no: 19387 issued on April
4,2005, the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2004 are adjusted and its 2005
openings are prepared based on the requirements set out in “the preparation of financial
statements in hyperinflationary periods” specified in the Capital Market Board’s (CMB) Decree
Volume: XI, No: 25 “Accounting Standards in Capital Markets” which was published in the
Official Gazette No: 25290 on November 15, 2003. In addition, the preparation of financial
statements in hyperinflationary periods has not been applied in accordance with the statement of
the Undersecretariat of the Treasury. Therefore, as of December 31, 2014, non-monetary
balance sheet assets and liabilities and equity items, including capital share, are calculated by
indexing of inputs as of December 31, 2004 (for inputs prior to December 31, 2004) and
carrying inputs subsequent to December 31, 2004 at nominal value.

b. Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements

The Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 is presented in comparison with its
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013; income statement, statement of changes in equity and
cash flow statement for the interim period between January 1 — December 31, 2014 are
presented in comparison with its income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash
flow statement for the interim period between January 1 — December 31, 2013.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

c. Technical Reserves

Unearned Premium Reserve

Unearned premium reserve is calculated on a daily basis for all policies in force as of balance
sheet date for unearned portions of premiums written except for marine premiums. During the
calculation of unearned portion of premiums written on a daily basis, it is supposed that the
policies start at 12.00 noon and finish at 12.00 noon again. Within the framework of the
“Regulation Regarding the Technical Reserves of Insurance, Reinsurance and Pension
Companies and the Assets to which These Reserves Are Invested,” (“Regulation on Technical
Reserves”) issued in Official Gazette No: 26606 dated August 7, 2007, unearned premium
reserve and the reinsurers’ share of the unearned premium reserve of the policies, are calculated
as the unearned portion of the premiums and ceded premiums to reinsurers without deducting
commissions or any other deductions, on an accmal and gross basis. For marine policies with an
uncertain end date, unearned premium reserve is calculated as 50% of the premiums written in
the last three months (Note 20).

Deferred commission expense and income

Within the framework of the Circular numbered 2007/25 and dated December 28, 2007
published by Treasury, the unearned portion of commissions paid to agencies for the written
premiums and commissions received from reinsurers for the ceded premium, are recorded as in
deferred expenses and deferred income, respectively on the balance sheet, and as operating
expenses on a net basis in the income statement.

Unexpired Risks Reserve

Within the framework of Regulation on Technical Reserves, insurance companies are required
to account for an unexpired risk reserve against the probability that, future losses incurred from
in force policies may exceed the unearned premium reserve accounted for the related policies
considering expected loss ratios. Expected loss ratio is calculated by dividing the current year
incurred losses to current year earned premiums. If the loss ratio for a branch is higher than
95%, net unexpired risk reserve for that branch is calculated by multiplying the ratio in excess
of 95% with net unearned premium reserve for the related branch; and gross unexpired risk
reserve for that branch is calculated by multiplying the ratio in excess of 95% with gross
unearned premium reserve for the related branch. The difference between gross and net amounts
is considered as the reinsurance share.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

The Company has calculated and accounted for net unexpired risk reserve amounting to
TL 10.218.793 at December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 9.189.638) (Note 20).

Claims provision

The Company accounts for outstanding claims provision for ultimate cost of the claims
incurred, but not paid in the current or previous periods or, for the estimated ultimate cost if the
cost is not certain yet, and for the incurred but not reported claims. Claim provisions are
accounted for based on reports of experts or initial assessments of policyholders and experts,
and salvage, subrogation and similar gains are not deducted.

The Company accounts for additional provision for claims incurred but not reported which is
calculated as the difference between the outstanding claims provision and the amount calculated
by using the actuarial chain ladder methods in accordance with the framework of the Circular on
“Actuarial Chain Ladder Method” numbered 2010/12 and dated September 20,2010 effective
from September 30, 2010 and other related regulations.

In accordance with the Communiqué which is effective from September 30, 2010, the insurance
companies has to make the calculations on each branch based on actuarial chain ladder method
(“ACLM”) with using 5 methods which are mentioned in the Communiqué which are all based
on incurred loss (total of outstanding and paid claims).

The right of choosing one of the methods is given to the insurance companies which will
determine the method for each branch as at December 31, 2010 by evaluating the best adequate
method for the portfolio company and will not change the method for 3 years. The peak claims
which are mentioned as big claims are eliminated in a individual file by using prescribed
statistical methods in the Communiqué in order to make the ACLM calculations with a more
homogeneous data set. Additionally, the ACLM calculations are performed on gross basis and
the net amounts are determined according to in force reinsurance treaties of the Company.

In accordance with the circular dated December 26, 2011 and numbered 2011/23 “Explanations
Related Calculation of Incurred But Not Reported Claims Provision (IBNR)” (the “Circular
numbered 2011/23”), unlike the previous year, accrued claim recovery, salvage income is taken
into account in ACLM calculations as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. In
addition, according to the Circular numbered 2011/23, negative results in the ACLM
calculations are fully included in IBNR calculation.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

In this respect, the Company has taken 100% (December 31, 2013: 100%) of the provision for
claims incuned but not reported into account and has accounted for a net additional outstanding
claim provision amounting to TL 82.448.162 as at December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL
45.359.046).

In scope of December 26, 2011 dated and 2011/23 numbered “Notice about the Calculation of
Incurred But Not Reported Compensation Reserve (IBNR)” (“2011/23 numbered Notice), the
Insurance Companies, for the first time as of December 31, 2011, can calculate a recover ratio
over the case amounts regarding to the cases against the Company by branch and according to
realizations of the last five years by taking into account completion dates of the cases, and can
make a deduction using this recover rate over the current outstanding compensation reserve
amount. As of December 31, 2014, the Company has calculated recover ratios by dividing the
lawsuit amount finalized in the favour of the Company to the all lawsuit cases finalized by using
claim files all stages of the judicial in the last three years for motor own damage and
compulsory traffic branches and in the two years for the other branches. The principal amounts
have been taken into consideration and interest and other charges have been excluded from
recover ratio calculations. In accordance with the Communique numbered 2011/23, the
deduction from the outstanding claims under legal follow-up has been made using the ratio 25%
for the branches with recover ratios over 25%. The Company has made the calculation from the
information in gross basis and has determined reinsurance share of the discounted amount based
on the average reinsurance share of legal claim files in branch basis.

The net deduction amount from outstanding claim files using the winning ratios calculated on a
sub-branch basis is TL 14.778.013 as of December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL
11.893.970). Besides, in accordance with the Communiqué numbered 2011/23, claim amounts
are taken into consideration without any deduction for all calculations performed to determine
incurred but not reported claim provision.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

The winning ratios calculated on a sub-branch basis as of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, are explained below:

Sub-branch December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Third Party Liability %25,0 %25,0
Electronic Device %21,6 %1,1
Commodity %25,0 %25,0
Personal Accident %21,8 %25,0
Theft %25,0 %25,0
Glass Breakage %25,0 %25,0
Employer Financial Liability % 18,0 %23,6
Obligatory Liability Insurance for Motor Cars %25,0 %25,0
LPG Compulsory Liability Insurance %0,0 %O,0
Construction %25,0 %25,O
Employment %25,0 %25,0
Motor Crafts Liability %25,0 %25,0
Machinery Breakdown %25,0 %25,0
Professional Indemnity Insurance %25,O %25,0
Bus Compulsory Personal Accident %25,0 %25,0
Health %25,0 %25,0
Water Craft %13,8 %14,4
Compulsory Traffic %11,1 %16,2
Fire %25,0 %25,0
Compulsory Highway Transportation Liability % 10,5 % 15,3

In accordance with the Communique, Company has selected the most appropriate method based
the structure of the company portfolio and in accordance with the decision the Actuary of the
Company as of December 31, 2010, has used these methods selected during the calculations
performed as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The gross and net reserve amounts
on branch basis calculated by using ACLM and as a result of these calculations to be allocate as
additional or to be deducted from reserves in the event of negative results of the calculated, as
of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are explained below:
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Decenilxr3i,2014 (*9 December31, 2013(9
&oss Additional Reserve Net AdditionalReserqe Ciross Additional Reserve Net Additional Reserve

Branch Applied Method (9 t100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Motor Vehicles Liability Standard Chain 74.021.824 73.281.607 55.307.921 54247.114
~neoalLiability Standard (Thain 79.760.536 31.493.244 50.198.413 17.118.046
Financial Losses Standard Chain .193.455 1.097.755 1.914.397 1.823.775
LegalProtectton Standard Chain 199.021 199.021 991.700 991.700
Fire and Natunt Disaster Standard Chain (1.551.964) (636.936) (587.807) (189.672)
AirVehicles Liability Standard Chain 2.176.698 60 (302.945) (107)
Credit Standard Chain 361.580 16.551 553.581 18.493
Water vehicles Standard Chain 1.122.221 199.127 437.093 346.907
AirVehictes Standard Chain (1.328) - (3.702) -

Accident Standard Chain 764.452 566.322 231.931 177.499
Health Standard Chain (2.299.809) (2.296.993) (1.775.203) (1.771.175)
Breach ofTnast Standard Chain 7.605 1.149 t553.474) (152347)
Transportation Standard Chain (169.396) (53.204) (482.468) (179.077)
Chneral Losses Standard Chain (4.376.781) (254.705) 574.814 21.953
Motor Own Dannge Standard Chain (21.378.636) (21.164.837) (27.646.840) (27.093.903)
Total 129.829.478 82.448.161 78.857.411 45.359.006

(9 In the Sector Communique dated 5 April 2013 and No: 2013)8, it is stated that Companies can change the methods
they use in ACLM Calculations and these changes may start as of the first quarter ot the year 2013 and that Treasury
has to be notified of these changes. In this regard, in its letter dated 10 July 2013 and numbered 2/27, the Company
requested approval from the Treasury to use the Standard Chain Method instead of the Munich Chain Method used in
many branches and the Treasury approved this request through its letter dated 17 July 2013 and numbered 38681552.
Had the Company not applied any method change as of December 31, 2013 and kept using the methods of December
31, 2012, the ACLM calculation (without coefficient interference and box plot elimination in Fire and Natural
Disaster branch) would have turned out U 8.035.200 lower (Net: TL 11.220.370).

(*9 The Company applied to the Undersecretariat of Treasury through the letter dated January21, 2015. The Company
have interfered tn the development coefficient in the ACLM calculation in the Compulsory Traffic, and General
Liability. As of December31, 2014, as a result of the interference in the development coefficient in Compulsory
Traffic branch, the gross IBNR amount was decreased byTL 11.244.238 (Net IBNR: TL 11.131.794). As aresult of
the interference in the development Coefficient in General Liability branch, the gross IBNR amount was decreased by
TL 20.387.058 (Net IBNR: it 8.049.799). Besides, through the said letter, in line with the actuarial opinion in the
Fire and Natural Disaster branch and general loses, the gross IBNR amount was increased by TL 22.689.160 (Net
IBNR: U 9.311.770) and U 37.844.012 (Net IBNR: TL2.202.32l),respectively.

k

The Company eliminated the peak claims which are mentioned as big claims by using
prescribed statistical methods in the Communique in order to perform the ACLM calculations
with a homogeneous data. The big claim limits which are used for the elimination in branch
basis are as follows:

Branch December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Compulsory Traffic 103.065 93.387
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

The provision calculated by ACLM are performed in gross basis; and is net off based on the
reinsurance agreements in force. The Company has used the reinsurance share of outstanding
claims to net off the provision by considering its reinsurance agreements in force. In this
context, the Company has taken into consideration reinsurance ratio of total outstanding claim
reserves, as the method of netting, as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Equalization Reserve

In accordance with the Regulation on Technical Reserves, insurance companies are required to
record an equalisation reserve for the insurance contracts including earthquake and credit
coverage, in order to cover the catastrophic risks and in order to equalise the fluctuations within
the claim ratios that may occur during the following accounting periods. Such reserve is
calculated over 12% of net earthquake and credit premiums corresponding to each year. In the
calculation of the net premium, the amounts paid for the non-proportional reinsurance
agreements are regarded as ceded premiums.

It is possible to deduct the equalisation reserve for earthquake compensations from equalisation
reserve for outstanding compensation reserve, but not current year’s equalisation reserve, upon
supplying evidence such as compensation payments for the earthquake, expert reports or the
documentation that can be gathered from official institutions. In this extent, the Company has
not deducted any claim amount from equalisation reserve.

The Company has calculated TL 38.577.088 (December 31, 2013: TL 30.723.954) of
equalisation reserve as of December 31, 2014 (Note 20).

Life mathematical reserves

Life mathematical reserves comprise actuarial mathematical reserves (those with minimum
income guarantee determined by the tariffs approved by the Treasury and those including risk
guarantees over one year) and life profit share reserves and represent the Company’s total
liability to the policyholders in the life branch.

Mathematical reserve; is the sum of the reserves specified in the contract’s technical terms and
calculated using statistical and actuarial methods in order to cover the liabilities of insurance
companies to policyholders and beneficiaries for life, health, sickness and personal accident
insurance contracts with periods longer than a year, and if it is committed, the reserves for the
part allocated to insured from the revenues derived from the investment of such reserves. In
accordance with the Insurance Law, the remaining amount of life branch premiums that are
collected in accordance with life insurance agreements, after deduction of expense charges,
mortality risk premium and commissions are accounted for as life mathematical reserves. The
approval of mathematical reserves is made by the actuaries based on current mortality tables
valid for Turkish insurance companies and prepared by considering mortality statistics prepared
abroad (Note 20).
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

d. Subrogation and salvage income

Within the framework of the “Circular on Salvage and Subrogation Income” numbered 2010/13
and dated September 20, 2010 issued by the Treasury, the Company recognizes receivables
from salvage and subrogation under the account “Receivables from main operations” on an
accrual basis as of December 31, 2014 up to coverage limit of debtor insurance company, on
conditions that following the payment of claim, the Company receives the acquittance or
document agreed on payment from individuals and notification is made to individuals or
insurance company. However, a doubtful receivables provision for these receivables is
accounted in case where related amounts are not collected from insurance companies after six
months and from individuals after four months following the payment of claim.

Accordingly, accrued receivables from salvage and subrogation and doubtful receivables
provision for salvage and subrogation as of Decemeber 31, 2014 are TL 27.862.549 (December
31, 2013: TL 20.693.466) and TL 4.740.915 (December31, 2013: TL 5.644.886) respectively
(Note 12.1)

The amounts of the net salvage and subrogation income which are collected and the accrued
income amounts from salvage and subrogation receivables as at December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 for the claims paid by the Company are as follows:

Fire and Natural Disaster
Transportation
Accident
Motor Own Damage
Water crafts
General Losses
Motor crafts Liability
Breach ofTnsst
General Liability
Credit
Financial Losses
Legal Protection
Health
Total

Decembcr 31, 2014
Collection Accrual

Gross Reinsurance share Net Gross Reinsurance share Net

1.364.204 (499.430) 864.774 406.360 (74.937) 331.423
2.161.427 (552.298) 1.609.129 155.148 . 155.148

95.018 . 95.018 14.500 . 14.500
168.588.883 (t.688.629) 166.900.254 21.868,014 (217.848) 21.650.166

78.500 (58.875) t9.625 . - -

339.231 (242.190) 97.041 2.265 (1.106) 1.159
4.163.299 (36.770) 4.126.529 973.263 (9.733) 963.530

1.118 (847) 271 . . -

151.955 (31) 151.924 5.708 - 5.708

1.951 (1.450) 501 - .

8.936 . 8.936 .

176.954.522 (3.080.520) 173.874.002 23.425.258 (303.624) 23.121.634
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fire and Natural Disaster
Transportation
Accident
Motor Own Damage
Water Crafts
General Losses
Motor Crafts Liability
Breach of Trust
General Liability
Credit
Financial Losses
Legal Protection
Health
Total

e. Premium Income and Claims

Premium income represents premiums on policies written during the year. Unearned premium
reserves are determined from premiums written during the year on a daily basis.

Claims are recognized as expense as they are paid. Outstanding claims provision is provided for
both reported unpaid claims at period-end and incurred but not reported claims. Reinsurer’s
shares of claims paid and outstanding loss provisions are off-set against these reserves.

f. Receivables from Insurance Operations

In accordance with the Turkish Tax Code article No: 323 and TAS 39 Impairement Principles,
the Company provided provision for doubtfull receivables by taking the nature and the value of
the receivable into account. As of December 31, 2014, the Company has provided provision for
the doubtfull receivables under legal and management follow up in the account of “Provision for
doubtful receivables from insurance operations” amounting to TL 25.266.142. (December 31,
2013: TL 17. 691.138), provision for the overdue receivables which are not under legal follow
up in the account of “Provision for doubtful receivables from main operations” amounting to
TL 2.135.354 (December 31, 2013: TL 1.866.354). Furthermore, provision is accounted for the
retention of claim recovery transcations under legal follow up amounting to TL 35.000.756
(December 31, 2013: TL 33.032.447) and it has been accounted in “Provision for doubtful
receivables from main operations” account (Note 12).

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(Continued)

and Specific Accounting Policies Used

December31, 2013
Collection Accrual

Gross Reinsurance share Net Gross Reinsurance share Net

1.355.886 (385.599) 970.287 1.283.239 (212.340) 1.070.899
1.393.970 (620.511) 773.459 110.841 (14,062) 96.779

39.577 - 39.577 12.692 . 12.692
140.980.184 (2.839.153) 138.141.031 11.379.508 205.900 11.585.408

152.837 (t27.855) 24.982 - . -

t42.6t2 (104.648) 37.964 12.463 (8.469) 3.994
4.234.542 (93.087) 4.141.455 2.120.381 (42.408) 2.077.973

29,592 (21.102) 8.490 - -

251.533 (103.525) 148.008 125.670 (31) 125.639
. - 313.000 (297.350) 15.650

1.110 (999) 111 835 (418) 417
- - - 26.923 - 26.923

6.300 . 6.300 32.206 - 32.206
148.588.143 (4.296.479) 144.291.664 15.417.758 (369.178) 15.048.580
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

g. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share presented in the statement of income is calculated by dividing the net profit
into the weighted average number of the outstanding shares throughout the financial year.

Companies in Turkey can increase their capital by distributing “bonus shares” to shareholders
from the prior periods’ profit. Such “bonus share” distributions are considered as issued shares
in the earnings per share calculations. Accordingly, weighted average number of equity shares
used in the calculations is calculated by considering the retrospective effects of share
distributions.

h. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events cover the events between the balance sheet date and the issuance of the
financial statements, even if they are occurred subsequent to the disclosures made on profit or
other selected financial information.

The Company adjusts its financial statements in the occurrence of any subsequent events
(Note 46).

i. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

If provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount will be equal to the present value of such cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably
(Note 23.2).

j. Changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies or accounting errors are applied retrospectively and prior year
financial statements are adjusted accordingly. if estimated changes in accounting policies are
only for one period, changes are applied on the current year but if estimated changes are for the
following periods, changes are applied both on the current and following years prospectively.

k. Corporate Taxation and Deferred Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax expense.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Corporate Tax

Corporation tax is payable at a rate of 20% on the total income of the Company and its
Subsidiaries registered in Turkey in 2014 (2013: 20%) after adjusting for certain disallowable
expenses, exempt income and investment and other allowances. No further tax is payable unless
the profit is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or
resident corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not
considered as a profit distribution thus does not incur withholding tax and no stoppage is
applied.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 20% on their
corporate income. Advance Tax is declared by 14th of the second month following and payable
by the 17th of the second month following each calendar quarter end. Advance Tax paid by
corporations is credited against the annual Corporation Tax liability.

The balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set off against other liabilities
to the government.

The affiliate shares stocked for minimum 2 years and the 75% of the profit obtained from the
property sales are considered as tax exemptions in such condition that the amount is added onto
capital as prestated in Corporate Tax Law or the amount is kept in equity for 5 years.

According to Turkish tax legislation, financial losses on the returns can be offset against period
income for up to 5 years. However, financial losses can not be offset against previous years’
profits.

There is no such application for the reconciliation of payable taxes with the tax authority.
Corporate tax returns are submitted to the related tax office by the 25th day of the 4th month
following the month when the accounting period ends. In tax reviews authorized bodies can
review the accounting records for the past five years and if errors are detected, tax amounts may
change due to tax assessment.

In accordance with Tax Law No.5024 “Law Related to Changes in Tax Procedural Law, Income
Tax Law and Corporate Tax Law” published in the Official Gazette on 30 December 2003 to
amend the tax base for non-monetary assets and liabilities, effective from 1 January 2004
income and corporate taxpayers are required to prepare the statutory financial statements by
adjusting the non-monetary assets and liabilities for the changes in the general purchasing
power of the Turkish Lira. In accordance with the Law in question, the cumulative inflation rate
for the last 36 months and the inflation rate for the last 12 months must exceed 100% and 10%
respectively (Wholesale Price Index increase rate). Since these conditions in question were not
fulfilled in 2014 and 2013, no inflation adjustments were performed (Note 35).
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used
(Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Except the conditions that the Company can control its temporary differences removal and when
the possibility of that removal is very low, Deferred tax liabilities are accounted for all of the
taxable temporary differences that are related with the rates in partnerships and investments in
subsidiaries and participations. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised (Note 35).

Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and
funds surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are
resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. The rate of income
withholding tax is 10% starting from April 24,2003 by the end of July 22, 2006. However, this
rate was changed to 15% commencing from 22 July 2006 upon the order no: 2006/10731 of the
Council of Ministers. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to
income withholding taxes.

2.1.2 Other related accounting policies for the understanding of financial statements

All accounting policies are explained in Note 2.1.1 “Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements and Specific Accounting Policies Used”.

2.1.3 Functional currency

The Company’s financial statements are expressed in TL, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.4 Rounding degree used in the financial statements

All the balances presented in the financial statements are expressed in full in Turkish Lira (TL).

2.1.5 Valuation method(s) used in the presentation of financial statements

Financial statements, except for revaluation of financial instruments, are prepared based on the
historical cost method.

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December
2014 are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2014. The effects of
these standards and interpretations on the Company’s financial position and performance have
been disclosed in the related paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January
2014 are as follows:

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
liabilities (Amended)

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off”
and also clarify the application of the TAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. These amendments did not have an impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

TFRS Interpretation 21 Levies

The interpretation clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that
triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. It also clarifies that a levy
liability is accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period
of time, in accordance with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a
minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be recognized before the
specified minimum threshold is reached. The interpretation is not applicable for the Company
and did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

TAS 36 Impairment of Assets (Amended) - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non
Financial assets

As a consequential amendment to TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, some of the disclosure
requirements in TAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding measurement of the recoverable
amount of impaired assets has been modified. The amendments required additional disclosures
about the measurement of impaired assets (or a group of assets) with a recoverable amount
based on fair value less costs of disposal. These amendments did not have an impact on the
financial statements of the Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Amended)- Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments provides a narrow exception to the requirement for the discontinuation of hedge
accounting in circumstances when a hedging instrument is required to be novated to a central
counterparty as a result of laws or regulations. These amendments did not have an impact on
the financial statements of the Company.

TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Amendment)

TFRS lOis amended to provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment
entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with TFRS.
This amendment does not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

ii) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet
effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company
will make the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the
financial statements and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become
effective.

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and measurement

As amended in December 2012, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015. Phase 1 of this new TFRS introduces new requirements for classifying
and measuring financial instruments. The amendments made to TFRS 9 will mainly affect the
classification and measurement of financial assets and measurement of fair value option (FVO)
liabilities and requires that the change in fair value of a FVO financial liability attributable to
credit risk is presented under other comprehensive income. The Company will quantify the
effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is
adopted by POA.

TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendment)

TAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. The amendments clarify that, if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to
recognise such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the service
is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. These amendments
are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. The
amendments will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

TFRS 11 Acquisition of an Interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

TFRS 11 is amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constitutes a business. This amendment requires the acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as defined in TFRS 3
Business Combinations, to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in
TFRS 3 and other TFRSs except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in this
TFRS. In addition, the acquirer shall disclose the information required by TFRS 3 and other
TFRSs for business combinations. These amendments are to be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

TAS 16 and TAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38)

The amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38, have prohibited the use of revenue-based
depreciation for property, plant and equipment and significantly limiting the use of revenue-
based amortisation for intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 41 Agriculture (Amendment) — Bearer
Plants

TAS 16 is amended to provide guidance that bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees
and oil palms should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment in
TAS 16. Once a bearer plant is mature, apart from bearing produce, its biological
transformation is no longer significant in generating future economic benefits. The only
significant future economic benefits it generates come from the agricultural produce that it
creates. Because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing, either the cost model or
revaluation model should be applied. The produce growing on bearer plants will remain within
the scope of TAS 41, measured at fair value less costs to sell. Entities are required to apply the
amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on
the financial position or performance of the Company.

Annual Improvements to TASITFRSs

In September 2014, Public Oversight Authority (POA) has issued the below amendments to the
standards in relation to “Annual Improvements - 2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual
Improvements - 2011—2013 Cycle. The changes are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on orafter 1 July 2014.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

Annual Improvements - 201 0—2012 Cycle

TFRS 2 Share-based Payment:

Definitions relating to vesting conditions have changed and performance condition and service
condition are defined in order to clarify various issues. The amendment is effective
prospectively.

TFRS 3 Business Combinations

Contingent consideration in a business acquisition that is not classified as equity is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the
scope of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amendment is effective for business combinations
prospectively.

TFRS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as follows: i) Operating segments may be combined/aggregated if they are
consistent with the core principle of the standard. ii) The reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker. The amendments are effective retrospectively.

TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment to TAS 16.35(a) and TAS 38.80(a) clarifies that revaluation can be performed,
as follows:
i) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or ii) determine the market
value of the carrying amount and adjust the gross carrying amount proportionately so that the
resulting carrying amount equals the market value. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment clarifies that a management entity — an entity that provides key management
personnel services — is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. The amendment
is effective retrospectively.

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle

TFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifies that: i) Joint arrangements are outside the scope of TFRS 3, not just
joint ventures H) The scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is effective prospectively.

Amendment to the Basis for Conclusions on TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The portfolio exception in TFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and
other contracts. The amendment is effective prospectively.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

TAS 40 Investment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The amendment is effective
prospectively.

The Company do not expect that these amendments will have significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Company.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by Public Oversight Authority (POA)

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing WRS standards are issued
by the JASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements.
However, these standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not
yet adaptedlissued by the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Company will
make the necessary changes to its financial statements after the new standards and
interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS.

Annual Improvements — 2010—2012 Cycle

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

As clarified in the Basis for Conclusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendment is effective immediately.

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB issued WRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new
five-step model in the standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of
revenue. The standard applies to revenue from contracts with customers and provides a model
for the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities
(e.g., the sale of property, plant and equipment or intangibles). IFRS 15 is effective for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early adoption permitted. Entities
will transition to the new standard following either a full retrospective approach or a modified
retrospective approach. The modified retrospective approach would allow the standard to be
applied beginning with the current period, with no restatement of the comparative periods, but
additional disclosures are required. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of
the standard on financial position or performance of the Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Final standard (2014)

In July 2014 the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The final
version of IFRS 9 brings together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting phases of the IASB’s project to replace lAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. JERS 9 is built on a logical, single classification and measurement approach
for financial assets that reflects the business model in which they are managed and their cash
flow characteristics. Built upon this is a forward-looking expected credit loss model that will
result in more timely recognition of loan losses and is a single model that is applicable to all
financial instruments subject to impairment accounting. In addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so-
called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book gains through profit or loss as a result
of the value of their own debt falling due to a decrease in credit worthiness when they have
elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard also includes an improved hedge
accounting model to better link the economics of risk management with its accounting
treatment. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
However, the Standard is available for early application. In addition, the own credit changes
can be early applied in isolation witho ut otherwise changing the accounting for financial
instruments. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial
position or performance of the Company.

lAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to lAS 27)

In August 2014, L4SB issued an amendment to lAS 27 to restore the option to use the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaries and associates in an entity’s separate
financial statements. Therefore, an entity must account for these investments either:
• At cost
• In accordance with JERS 9 (or lAS 39),
Or
• Using the equity method

The entity must apply the same accounting for each category of investments. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments must be
applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted and must be disclosed. The amendment
is not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle

In September 2014, IASB issued their annual cycle of improvements to IFRSs, Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle. The document sets out five amendments to four
standards, excluding those standards that are consequentially amended, and the related Basis
for Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the amendments are:
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — changes in methods of
disposal
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — servicing contracts; applicability of the
amendments to IFRS 7 to condensed interim financial statements
lAS 19 Employee Benefits — regional market issue regarding discount rate
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.6 The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

lAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim
financial report’

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the
amendments on financial position or performance of the Company.

IFRS 10 and lAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture (Amendments)

In September 2014, IASB issued amendments to WRS 10 and lAS 28, to address the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and lAS 28 in dealing with
the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or ajoint venture, to clarify
that an investor recognises a full gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute
a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate orjoint venture. The
gain or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a
former subsidiary should be recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
that former subsidiary. An entity shall apply those amendments prospectively to transactions
occurring in annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on
the financial position or performance of the Company.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and lAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and lAS 28)

In December 2014, IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and lAS 28, to address the
issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendments are applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

lAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to lAS 1)

In December 2014, IASB issued amendments to lAS 1. Those amendments include narrow-
focus improvements in the following five areas: Materiality, Disaggregation and subtotals,
Notes structure, Disclosure of accounting policies, Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments are
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. These amendments are not expected have
significant impact on the notes to the financial statements of the Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The Company has no subsidiaries or joint ventures that fall within the scope of consolidation as
per “TFRS 10— Consolidated and Seperate Financial Statements” as of December 31, 2014
(December 31, 2013: None).

2.3 Segment Reporting

Reporting segments are determined to conform to the reporting made to the Company’s chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for making
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Details
related to the segment reporting are disclosed in the Note 5.

2.4 Discontinued Operations

The Company does not have any discontinued or disposed operations as of December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013.

2.5 Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s funtional currency is Turkish Lira (“TL”). In preparing the financial statements
of the Company, transactions in currencies other than TL (foreign currencies) are recognized at
exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Turkish Lira at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated to Turkish Lira at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of non monetary financial assets and
liabilities are considered as part of the fair value changes and those differences are accounted
for in the accounts in which the fair value changes.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss.

Assets held for use in the construction, or for leasing, administrative or any other purposes are
carried at cost, less any impairment. Legal charges are also added to costs. For assets that need
substantial time to be ready for use or sale, borrowing costs are capitalized based on the
Company’s accounting policy.
Such assets are depreciated, on the same basis used for other fixed assets, when they are ready
to use. Assets, other than land and ongoing constructions, are depreciated over their expected
useful lives by using the straight line method. Estimated useful life, residual value, and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated as the same basis as property, plant and
equipment or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognized to profit or loss.

Depreciation periods for plant, property and equipment are presented in the table
below:

Useful Life

Buildings 50 years
Vehicles 5 years
Fixtures 10 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 - 10 years

2.7 Investment Properties

Investment property is held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Carrying amount includes
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if
the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment
property. Depreciation is provided on investment property on a straight line basis. Depreciation
period for investment property is nil for land, and 50 years for buildings.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only, when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
applied to “Property, Plant and Equipment” up to the date of change in use.

Real estates held under finance lease are classified as investment properties.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8 Intangible Assets

Thtangible assets acquired

Intangible assets acquired are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred from the
date of acquisition to the date to bring the specific software in use. These costs are capitalized
under intangible advances account and amortized over their estimated useful lives (ito 10
years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognized
as expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable
and unique software products that are controlled by the Company and will probably provide
more economic benefits than costs in one year are recognized as intangible assets. Costs include
software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Computer software development costs recognized as assets from the date that the assets become
to provide economical benefit are amortized over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding 3
years).

2.9 Financial Assets

Investments, other than those that are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date, where the purchase or sale of an
investment under a contract, whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as
“available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets, “financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss” and “loans and receivables”. As of December 31, 2014, the Company has no financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss (December 31, 2013: None).

Effective interest method

Effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than a) held-to-maturity, b) held for trading, or c) loans and receivables are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial Assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value
except available-for-sale investments that do not have quoted prices in an active market and
their fair values cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost and restated to the equivalent
purchasing power. Gains and losses arising from available-for-sale financial assets are included
in profit or loss for the period. Changes in the fair value of such these assets are recognized in
the equity. When the related asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the profit or loss for
the period. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial Assets at Insured’s Risk

Such assets are classified as available for sale and held to maturity financial assets. Available
for sale financial assets are carried at fair value and revaluation difference arising from
amortized cost is recognized under the statement of income. Also, 5% of the difference in
between the fair value and amortized cost is recognized under equity and 95% of insurance
technical reserves that are attributable to insurees are recognized in the Insurance Technical
Reserves - Life Mathematical Reserves account. Assets that are not carried at fair value are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Associates

An associate is an entity that retains at the shares of voting rights or has significant power over
another entity. The difference between carrying value and fair value (to the extent that it is
measured reliably) of such assets are recognized in shareholders’ equity and assets that have fair
value are carried at fair value while the other assets are carried at book value.
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2.10 Impairment of Assets

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate, that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that are impaired, are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses its financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, at each balance sheet
date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
classified as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or loans and receivables is impaired.

A financial asset or portfolio of financial assets is impaired and an impairment loss incurred if
there is objective evidence that an event or events since initial recognition of the asset have
adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the asset.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets except for trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized
in profit or loss.

Except for AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.For AFS equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognized directly in equity.

2.11 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses foreign currency swap contracts, the Company uses end of period market
exchange rates and interest rates to calculate market value of foreign exchange swap contracts.
During the period between January 1 — December 31, 2014, total income resulting from short-
term swap contracts’ market valuation has been accounted under” Income from derivates” in
the income statement. As of September 30, 2014, the Company has no derivative instruments
(December 31, 2013: None).
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2.12 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or when the acquisition
of the asset and the settlement the liability take place simultaneously.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term
highly liquid investments, which have maturities with three months or less from date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value (Notel4).

2.14 Share Capital

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s nominal capital is TL 306.000.000 (December 31,
2013: TL 306.000.000). Share capital is represented by 30.600.000.000 of equity shares having
a nominal amount of TL 0,01 each. The share capital structure of the Company is as follows:

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Rate Amount Rate Amount

% TL % TL

HOmer Sabanci Holding A.S. 36,00 110.160.000 36,00 110.160.000
Ageas Insurance International NV 36,00 110.160.000 36,00 110.160.000
Other 28,00 85.680.000 28,00 85.680.000

100,00 306.000.000 100,00 306.000.000

Agreement about the sale of %50 of 18.965.880.200 units of Aksigorta AS. shares with TL
189.658.802 nominal value that belong to H.O. Sabanci Holding (“Holding”) portfolio was
signed with Ageas Insurance International N.V. at February 18, 2011. At the date of July 29,
2011, 9.482.940.100 units of Aksigorta A.S. shares that correspond to %50 of the Holding’ s
portfolio have been transferred to Ageas Insurance International N.V. with the sale price
(exculuding the corrections) of USD 220.029.000.

The Company has accepted the registered capital system set out in accordance with the
provisions of Law No: 2499 and applied the system as of 15 June 2000 upon the permission no:
67/1039 granted by the Capital Markets Board.

As of December 30, 2014, Company has TL 500.000.000 registered share capital ceiling.
(December 31, 2013: TL 500.000.000).

In accordance with the ArticleS of the Corporate Tax Law 5520, the amount of TL 4.221.995
arising from 75% of the gain on sale of associates and fixed assets which has been recognized
in the “Non-Distributable Profit for the Period” account item under equity has been reclassified
under “Profit on sale to be transferred to capital” account item under equity as of December 31,
2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 86.694.419).

Other informations about Company’s share capital is explained in Note 15.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.15 Insurance and Investment Contracts

Insurance Contracts:

Insurance contracts are contracts in which one part accepts a significant insurance risk and pays
compensation (insurer) to the other part (insuree) when any uncertain case affects the insuree.
The Company makes reinsurance agreements in which the Company (ceding company) is
compensated by the insurer (reinsurer company) for one or more claims. Insurance contracts
entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer (reinsurance)
are included with insurance contracts.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts of the Company are included in classification of Insurance
contracts.

Insurance contracts are accounted when the insurance risk is transferred, and classified as an
insurance contract as of the maturity date and/or amortization of the all contractual rights and
liabilities.

Investment Contracts:

The accumulation component present in some life insurance contracts is measured by the
Company on a separate basis; On the other hand, as the accounting policies require the
recognition of rights and obligations related with the accumulation component, regardless of the
measurement principles, the insurance and investment components are not decomposed.

Reinsurance agreements

Reinsurance agreements are the agreements agreed by the Company and reinsurance company
for the loss which may occur in one or more insurance agreements signed by the Company, and
those meet all conditions to be classified as insurance contract and those whose costs are paid.

The Company has excess of loss and quota share treaty agreements in related branches. In the
context of excess of loss agreements, the ceded premiums are accounted for on accrual basis
over the related period. The ceded premiums and claims of other agreements are accounted on
the basis of the income and loss from related insurance contracts.

The Company has surplus reinsurance aggregement in fire, marine, engineering and other
accident branches. Besides, The Company has excess of loss agreements in fire, marine and
engineering branches. The Company continues to be exposed to the insurance risk under the
insurance contracts whereas the liability of the reinsurer ceases by the end of the agreement
period. Company has annual proportional quota-share reinsurance agreement for third person
liability, electronic equipment, personnal accident, health, professional liabilitiy, machinery
breakdown and bus compulsory chair branches. Mentioned reinsurance aggrements, the
reinsurer’s liability continues even after experation of the agreement in the mn-off agreements.

Catastrophic excess of loss re-insurance agreement, natural disasters such as flood and
earthquake is also protected in these branches.

In addition, the Company has facultative reinsurance agreements signed separately for certain
risks based on certain policies.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.15 Insurance and Investment Contracts (Continued)

Premiums Transferred to Social Security Institution

The collection and settlement of expenses with respect to the medical care related services
provided to the injured people due to the traffic accidents have been regulated by Article 98 of
Road Traffic Act numbered 2918 altered by Article 59 of “The Law on Restructuring of Some
Receivables and Changes in Social Security and General Insurance Law and Other Laws and
Law Decrees” (the “Law”) numbered 6111 and dated February 25, 2011. In this context, all the
traffic accident related medical care services provided by any public or private health institution
will be covered by Social Security Institution (“SSI”) regardless of social security status of the
injured. Besides, in accordance with the temporary Article 1 of the Law, all of the expenses with
respect to the traffic accident related medical care services provided before enforcement of the
Law, will also be covered by SSI.

The liability of the insurance companies with respect to the service costs to be incurred in the
context of abovementioned articles has been determined in accordance with the provisions of
“The Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the Costs of the Health Services Provided due
to the Traffic Accidents” dated 27 August 2011 (“The Regulation”), “The Communiqué on the
Principles of the Implementation of the Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the Costs
of the Health Services Provided due to the Traffic Accidents” dated September 15, 2011 and
numbered 2011/17 (the “Communiqué numbered 2011/17”) and “The Communiqué on the
Accounting of Payments to Social Security Institution (“SSI”) with respect to Treatment
Expenses and Introduction of New Account Codes to Insurance Account Chart” dated
17 October 2011 (the “Communiqué numbered 2011/18”), the regulation (the “Communique
numbered 2012/3”) making changes in “The Regulation on the Principles of Collection of the
Costs of the Health Services Provided due to the Traffic Accidents” dated March 16, 2012 and
numbered 2012/3 and the communique about changes related “the Principles of Collection of
the Costs of the Health Services Provided due to the Traffic Accidents” dated April 30, 2012 and
numbered 2012/6 (Note 2.24) (the “Communique numbered 2012/6”).Within this framework,
the Group is required to cede a certain amount of premiums to be determined in accordance with
the Regulation and the Communiqué numbered 2011/17 to SSI in relation to policies issued as of
February 25, 2011 the notice numbered 2012/3 and the communiqué numbered 2012/6 in
“Compulsory Transportation”, “Compulsory Traffic” and “Compulsory Motor Personal
Accident” branches regarding the expenses with respect to the traffic accident related medical
care services provided after enforcement of the Law. Based on the aforementioned regulations,
the Company has calculated the amount of the premiums to be ceded to SSI in January 1 -

December 31, 2014 accounting period as TL 19.616.808 (January 1— December 31, 2013: TL
24.718.602) and an unearned premium reserve amounting to TL 10.980.587 (December 31,
2013: 16.536.498) as of December 31, 2014; classified under the accounts of “Premiums ceded
to SSI” and “Change in SSI share of of Unearned Premiums Reserve”, respectively (Note 19).

In the Board of Directors meeting of The Association of the Insurance and Reinsurance
Companies of Turkey dated September 22, 2011 and numbered 18, it was decided to appeal
Council of State for the “suspense of execution” and “cancellation” of the Regulation and the
Communiqué numbered 2011/17; and the cancellation of related provisions of the Law as being
contradictory to the Constitution. The legal procedures are in progress as of the date of the
preparation of the financial statements.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.16 Insurance and Investment Contracts With Discretionary Participation Features

None (December 31, 2013: None).

2.17 Investment Contracts without Discretionary Participation Features

None (December 31, 2013: None).

2.18 Borrowings

None (December 31, 2013: None).

2.19 Employee Benefits

The Company accounts for its liability related to employment termination and vacation benefits
according to “Turkish Accounting Standards Regarding Employee Benefits” (“TAS 19”) and
classifies in balance sheet under the account “Provision of Employment Termination Benefits”.

According to the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to
each employee whose jobs are terminated except for the reasons such as resignation, retirement
and attitudes determined in Labour Law. The provision for employment termination benefits is
calculated over present value of the possible liability in scope with the Labour Law by
considering determined actuarial estimates (Note 22).

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured over expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation by considering the risks and uncertainties related
to the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the provision is measured by using the
estimated cash outflows that are required to settle the obligation, the carrying value of the
provision is equal to present value of the related cash outflows.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised as an asset if and only it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the reimbursement can be reliably estimated.

Liabilities that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity are classified as contingent liabilities and not included in the non-
consolidated financial statements (Note 23).

2.21 Accounting for revenues

Written Premium and Commission

Written premiums represent premiums on policies written during the year, net of cancellations.
Premium income is recognized in the financial statements on accrual basis by allocating the
unearned premium provision over written premiums.

Commission income received in relation to ceded premiums to reinsurance companies is
accrued in the related period and classified in technical part under operating expenses in the
income statement.

The part of paid amounts to the assistance services which hit the following periods are deferred
in accordance with the Technical Provisions Regulation numbered 27655 and dated July 28,
2010.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for revenues (Continued)

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are accounted on an accrual basis in the related period’s
profitlloss. Interest income includes income gains from the coupons of the fixed return
investment instruments and valuation of discounted government bonds based on internal rate of
return method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from the equity share investments are recognized when the shareholder has
the right to receive dividends.

2.22 Finance Lease - the Company as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing
costs.

Operational lease

The payment of the operational lease is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease period (The incentives received or to be received from the lessor and payments
made to intermediaries to acquire the lease contract are also charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease period).The Company has paid in advance in amounting to
TL 6.048.629 arising from operational leases amount of TL 4.270.309 in short term and amount
of TL 1.778.320 in long term. (December 31, 2013: None).As at December 2014, amount of TL
32.5 17.418 (USD 14.022.777), the maturity of outstanding operational lease liability is between
June 5, 2016—May 5, 2024

2.23 Profit Share Distribution

Listed companies distribute dividend in accordance with the Communiqué No.11-19.1 issued by
the CMB which is effective from February 1, 2014.

Companies distribute dividends in accordance with their dividend payment policies settled and
dividend payment decision taken in general assembly and also in conformity with relevant
legislations. The communiqué does not constitute a minimum dividend rate. Companies
distribute dividend in accordance with the method defined in their dividend policy or articles of
incorporation. In addition, dividend can be distributed by fixed or variable installments and
advance dividend can be paid in accordance with profit on interim financial statements of the
Company.
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.23 Profit Share Distribution (Continued)

In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC), unless the required reserves and the
dividend for shareholders as determined in the article of association or in the dividend
distribution policy of the Company are set aside, no decision may be made to set aside other
reserves, to transfer profits to the subsequent year or to distribute dividends to the holders of
usufruct right certificates, to the members of the board of directors or to the employees; and no
dividend can be distributed to these persons unless the determined dividend for shareholders is
paid in cash.

2.24 Hedge Accounting

All foreign currency payments, collections and investments result in a foreign exchange
position. The foreign currency cash flow transaction has faced the risk of exchange rate
fluctuations effect the Company’s financial position positively or negatively. In order to forecast
the transaction made via foreign currencies that have a high possibility of realization and
minimize the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on the Company’s financial position, hedge
accounting has been applied. Changes in the value of the hedge instrument arising from
exchange rate changes has been reclassified under equity, changes except for exchange rate has
been reclassified under current period income statement. The gains or losses recognized under
equity has been transferred to related profit! loss accounts when the transaction is completed or
the profit for the period is affected by the expected result of the transaction. In the case of
expectation of estimated transaction’s end, accumulated gain or loss recognized under equity
has been accounted as current period’s profit or loss in the financial statements. Effectiveness of
hedge transaction has been measured and evaluated in each reporting period. As of December
31, 2014 the Company has booked the hedging transaction under “Special funds” account item
under equity (Note 34.5)

2.25 Related parties

Parties are considered related to the Company if;

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

i) Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
ii) Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
v) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2. Summary of the Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.25 ReJated parties(Continued)

vi) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

vii) The entity is controlled orjointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

In the financial statements and related notes dated December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company
management, groups associated to HO. Sabanci Holding and Ageas Insurance International N.y.
are defined as related parties.

2.26 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions are recorded in TL, which represents the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
converted into TL at the exchange rates ruling at the reporting date with the resulting exchange
differences recognized in the statement of profit or loss as foreign exchange gains or losses.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted by using period end exchange rates of
Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey’s bid rates. For the conversion of liabilities the exchange
rate stated at the contract is used.

The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey exchange rates used in the conversion is as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
USDollar/TL Euro/TL USDollar/TL F.uro/TL

Bid Rates 2,3189 2,8207 2,1343 2,9365
AskRates 2,3265 2,83w 2,1413 2,9462

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Requirements

Preparation of financial statements requires the use of assumptions and estimates that might
affect the amounts of assets and liabilities reported as of balance sheet date, explanation of the
conditional assets and liabilities and amounts of the income and expenses reported throughout
the accounting period. Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions are evaluated taking
into consideration past experience, other factors, current conditions and reasonable expectations
for future events. Such evaluations and estimates might differ from actual consequences, even
though they are based on the best knowledge of the management about current events and
transactions.

One of the most important accounting estimates for the Company is to estimate the final net
liabilities relating to the expenses to arise from the effective policies. As per its nature,
estimating liabilities regarding the insurance business includes the evaluation of many
uncertainties.
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management

4.1 Insurance Risk

4.1.1 Objective of managing risks arising from insurance contracts and policies used to
minimize such risks

Insurance risk is the probability of risk exposure that is covered under any insurance contracts
and the uncertainty of the magnitude of the claims in relation to the risk exposed. Due to the
nature of insurance transactions, risks are incidental and hard to anticipate. Maximum risk that
the Company bears is limited to the coverage amount specified in the insurance contract.

The Company has adopted central risk assessment policy and this policy is applied in relation to
the Company’s specified operations and limitations. Principally, in risk assessment, potential
claims are measured based on the past experience, similar risk comparisons and risks in relation
to production process. Location, geographical area, field of activity and fire and theft measures
are also key issues used in the assessment of the insured risk.

4.1.2 Details of insurance risk, including the following information (details prior and/or
subsequent to minimizing risks through reinsurance);

4.1.2.1 Sensitivity to insurance risk

The Company is managing its insurance risk by policy production strategies, reinsurance
contracts and effective settlement and payment operations.

The Company’s policy production strategy follows an effective risk management in the policy
production process considering the nature, extent, geographical area and accurate distribution of
the risk incurred.

Reinsurance contracts include excess of loss (quota-share and excess loss) and catastrophic
coverage. The Company can also enter into reinsurance contracts with facultative participation
under its reinsurance programme.
Reinsurance Companies 2014

Reinsurance Company Standard & Poors Rating Reinsurance Company Standard & Poors Rating

A1~anz Risk Transfer AA- Korean Re A
Amlin Re A Malaysian Re Not Rated
Arab Re Not Rated Mapfre Re A
ARIG Not Rated Miii Re tr AA+
Asia Capital A- MS Frontier A÷
Catlin Re A Odyssey Re A-
China Re Not Rated Scor A+
Covea A Sompo Japan A+
Everest Re Toa Re A+
GJC Not Rated Trust Re A
Hannover Re AA- VIG A+
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1.2.1 Sensitivity to insurance risk(Continued)

Reinsurance Companies 2013

Reinsurance Company Standard & Poors Rating Reinsurance Company Standard & Poors Rating
Allianz Risk Transfer A- Korean Re A-
AmEn Re A Malaysian Re Not Rated
Arab Re Not Rated Mapfre Re BBB+
MUG Not Rated Mffli Re w AA-i
Asia Capital A- MS Frontier
Catlin Re A Odyssey Re A-
China Re Not Rated Scor
Covea Not Rated Sompo Japan
Everest Re A+ Toa Re Not Rated
SIC Not Rated Trust Re Not Rated
Hannover Re yb

4.1.2.2 Insurance risk concentrations with explanations of how management identify risk
concentrations and common features of each concentration (the nature of insurance,
geographic region or currency)

Generally, the Company’s insurance contracts include fire and natural disasters, marine,
accident, motor vehicles, air crafts, water crafts, general losses, motor vehicles liability, air
crafts liability, general liability, financial losses, legal protection, illness/health and life
branches. The Company’s gross and net insurance risk concentrations (after reinsurance) in
terms of insurance branches are summarized as below:

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Reinsurance

Reinsurance Net Total Share of Total Net Total
Total Claims Liability (9 Gross Total Share of Total claims Gross Total Claims Claims

Claims Liability Claims Liability Liability Claims Liability Liability Liability

Fire and Natural Disaster 43.265.040 (25.489.043) 17.775.997 35.834.118 (24.248.563) 11.585.555
Transportation 11.472.082 (7.868.869) 3.603.213 6.334.093 (3.983.020) 2.351.073
Accident 2.449.642 (609.116) 1.840.526 1.539.617 (361.108) 1.178.509
Motor Own Damage 37.042.070 (370.444) 36.671.626 24.288.512 (485.770) 23.802.742
Air Vehicles 46.461 (46.460) I (3.700) 3.702 2
WaterVehicles 3.035.112 (2.495.834) 539.278 528.483 (108.862) 419.621
GeneralLosses 63.256.558 (58.090.702) 5.165.856 87.037.263 (81.798.607) 5.238.656
Motor Vehicles Liability 157.376.989 (1.835.327) 155.541.662 123.440.292 (4.321.443) 119.118.849
Air Vehicles Liability 3.088.695 (3.088,609) 86 2.608.021 (2.607.103) 918
General Liability 121.560.785 (73.688.451) 47.872.334 72.448.420 (49.129.280) 23.319.140
F’mancialLosses 6.687.558 (542.459) 6.145.099 5.639.476 (267.639) 5.371.837
LegalProtection 305.234 305.234 1.054.022 1.054.022
Credit 4.466.852 (4.262.391) 204.461 1.747.275 (1.688.906) 58.369
Health 23.979.802 (30.093) 23.949.709 16.809.429 (38.146) 16.771.283
Breach of Trust 1.821.097 (1.545.760) 275.337 477.876 (346.165) 131.711
Life 3.900.783 3.900.783 3.944.612 (47) 3.944.565
Total 483.754.760 (179.963.558) 303.791.202 383.727.809 (169.380.957) 214.346.852

(*) Total claim liability includes all outstanding claims reserves as of the balance sheet date and incurred
but not reported claims as the actuarial chain ladder method and additional reserves from outstanding
claims reserve adequacy calculation.
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1.2.3 Comparison of incurred claims with past estimations (claims development process)

Outstanding Claim and Compensation Provision:

Unpaid Claims
Claim Provisions (9
Clean-cut Effect (**)
Non-life Total
Life
Grand Total

Unpaid Claims
Claim Provisions (9
Clean-cut Effect (**)
Non-life Total
Life
Grand Total

Effect on
Current Period

December 3 1, 2014
Reinsurance

Gross Total Share of Total
Gross Total

Net Total Claims
Liability

300.925.827
78.857.441

December 31, 2013
Reinsurance

Share of Total
Claims Liability

(135.882.546)
(33.498.405)

Premiums Provision.

Net Total
Claims

Liability
165.043.281
45.359.006

(Net)__Claims_Liability__Claims_Liability_Claims_Liability
(52.392.240) 350.017.763 (132.582.242) 217.435.521
(37.089.156) 129.829.478 (47.381.316) 82.448.162

1.355.476 - - - - - -

(88.125.920) 479.847.241 (179.963.558) 299.883.683 379.783.238 (169.380.951) 210.402.287
43.827 3.907.519 - 3.907.519 3.951.393 (47) 3.951.346

(88.082.093) 483.754.760 (179.963.558) 303.791.202 383.727.850 (169.380.998) 214.346.852

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Effect on Gross Total Share of Total Net Total Claims Share of Total Claims

Current Period Claims Liability Claims Liability Claims Liability Liability Claims Liability Liability
4.662.379 300.925.827 (135.882.546) 165.043.281 348.643.696 (178.938.036) 169.705.660

(30.477.835) 78.857.370 (33.498.364) 45.359.006 39.150.961 (24.269.790) 14.881.171
7.048.798 - - - - - -

(18.766.658) 379.783.197 (169.380.910) 210.402.287 387.794.657 (203.207.826) 184.586.831
(31.500) 3.944.612 (47) 3.944.565 3.915.287 (2.222) 3.913.065

(18,798.158) 383.727.809 (169.380.957) 214.346.852 391.709.944 (203.210.048) 188.499.896

(*) Claim provisions include all additional provisions within unpaid claims
compensation provision in the balance sheet date.

in the total outstanding

(**) Company has clean-cut agreement in auto-accident branch and as per these agreements, the Company has
realized 2013 preimum and claims protfolio outputs by December 31, 2013. As per the same agreement,
portfolio inputs are also made in 2014. Effect of 2014 portfolio input has influenced fiscal year Ceded
Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Claims Provision and Ceded Reinsurance Share of Unearned

Decenter 31, 2014 D~center3l, 2013
Reinsurance Reinsumnce

Cross Total Share ofTotal Net Total Gains (loss Total Sham ofTotal Net Total Gains
Gains liability Gains Liability Liability Gains liability Gains Lability Liability

300.925.827 (135.882546) 165.043.281 348M3.~6 (178.938.036) l~705ffi)
933.575.370 (105.913.047) 827.662323 720223.950 (8238U7~ 637.843.244

(707.586.747) 87.370.681 (620.2l6.~ (546.513.231) 89.267.883 (457.245.348)
(176.896.687) 21.842670 (155,054.017) (221.422.588) 36.168.313 (185.261275)

BeginningofPeiiod-January 1
(~ened in the Period
Paid fromGjntnt Period (-)

Paid fromA~vious Period (-)
Period End
Reported Gains

Life

IBNR

Total

350.017.763 (132582.242) 217.435.521 300.925.827 (135.882546) 165.043.281

3.~7.519 - 35(27.519 3.944.612 (47) 3.944.565

129.829.478 (47.381.317) 82.448.161 78.857411 (33.498.405) 45.359.~6

483.754.7w (179.963559) 303.791.201 383.727.850 (lW.380.~8) 214.346.852
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1.2.3 Comparison of incurred claims with past estimations (claims development process)
(continued)

Claims development tables prepared in accordance with the Technical Provision Regulations
which are used in the ACLM calculation are explained below:

Gross claim development table prepared on the priciples of incurred claims by December 31, 2014:

Atkkni rcflt~
Cairn ,eoiieaJ in he xd&rn

Januasy 1,2008- Jaasnuy 1.2009- Januuuy I, 2010- Janasey 1,2011- January I, 20(2- January 1,2013- (iithrr 1,20(4-
I3xemhsr3l, 2008 Dxernh,31, 2009 I~ritnau-3l, 2010 Dxemb,-30. 2011 Dceezstr3l, 2012 R,cent,-31, 2013 Iitemb#31, 2014 Uossosim

Jannsiy 1,2007- January I, 2(1)8- Janissy I, 2009- January 1,2010- January 1,2011- Jarruasry 1,2012- Jaulusey 1,2013-
Daremb, 30,2007 Ibarnitu 31, 2008 Dxenilyr3l, 2009 Da-mb, 31, 2010 I~nsftr 30, 2011 llreeanhx 31.2012 Daremb,- 31, 2013

368.537.759 188.061.876 104.813.627 47.607.071

28.194.497 12.825.310 1.122.844.055
19.412.574 - 1.335.890.591

- - 1.496.555.049
- - 1.326.817.122

- - 1.681.418.628
- - 2.018.277.301

- 1.081.928.781
12.825.310 10.063.731.527

6yrrursla(er
Total Cairns

4.1.2.4 Effects of the changes in assumptions used in the measurement of insurance assets and
liabilities showing the effect of each change separately that has significant effect on financial
statements

The Company has clean-cut agreements in relation to its car-accident branch, and premium and
loss portfolio withdrawals related to these agreements are recognized by the Company as of
December 31, 2013. In accordance with these agreements, portfolio additions are also recognized
in 2014. The reinsurance share of outstanding claim reserve and unearned premium reserve have
been affected from these portfolio additions in 2014.

A~&,il period

Cairn nialirsalin she niamu
period

I year mu,’
2 years sit,
3 years laser
4 years Isk,
5 years later
6 years last,
Total Qoss Coma

1,021,931,642 127.515.897 69.813.405 62.695.845 35.581.199 30.019.816 18.672.781 1.366.230.585
1.167.903.603 162.403.343 90.599.230 48.439.022 36.383.361 28.154.984 - 1.533.883.543
1.114.464.710 123.552.356 64.493.301 45.136.977 25.690.352 - - 1.373.337.696
1.274.038.325 110.975.867 61.854.194 29.098.424 - - 1.475.966.810
1.817.051.616 246.835.582 92.836.704 - - 2.156.723.902
1.322.530.429 119.542.086 - . - - 1.442.072.515
1.372.358.063 . 1.372.358.063
9.090.278.388 18.672.781 10.720.573.114890.825.131 379.596.834 (85.370.268 97.654.9(2 58.174.8(X)

Gross claim development table prepared on the priciples of incurred claims by December 31, 2013:

I ynurlata

2 yaws later
3 years laser
4 years laser

5 years later

826.036.581 105.993.624 55.169.870 51.348.014 43.276.159
1.021.268.077 127.004.681 69.631.711 62.603.977 35.969.571
1.168.132.827 162.465.227 91.242.060 49.147.038 25.567.897
1.114.114.214 123.387.977 64.352.084 24.962.847 -

1.290.845.424 302.431.170 88.142.034 -

1.818.853.715 199.423.586
1.081.928.781
8.321.179.619 1.020.706.265
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2 Financial Risk

4.2.1 Capital risk management and capital requirement

The Company’s main purpose in capital management is to maintain its going concern status as an
income yielding company and to protect shareholder and corporate partners’ benefits while
sustaining the most effective capital structure in order to reduce capital costs.

The Company measures its adequacy semi-annually in accordance with the Decree “Measurement
and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Insurance and Reinsurance Companies and Pension
Funds” published in the Official Gazette No: 26761 on January 19, 2008. As of June 31, 2014, the
Company’s required capital is TL 380.681.096 (December 31, 2013: TL 328.159883). As of June
30, 2014, the Company’s capital is TL 149.720.333 higher than required capital amount.
(December 31, 2013: TL 235.252.563)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors

The Company is exposed to market risk (exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit
risk, and liquidity risk due to its assets and liabilities and reinsurance assets and liabilities. The
Company’s risk management generally focuses on minimizing the probable adverse effects of
uncertainties in financial markets over the Company’s performance. The Company’s exposure to
interest rate risk and credit risk in general is due to its financial investments and insurance
receivables, respectively.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk due to fluctuations in the exchange rates, interest rates and
equity share prices.

Exchange rate risk

The Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities expose the Company to
exchange rate risks. These risks are monitored by analyzing exchange rate position. The details of
the Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2014 are
presented in details in Note 12.4.

Sensitivity to exchange rate risk

The Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase/decrease in USD and Euro currencies are presented
below. Sensitivity analysis only includes foreign currency denominated monetary assets
outstanding at the end of period and indicates the effects of 10% changes in exchange rates.
Positive value indicates an increase in profit/loss and other equity items.

December 31, 2013December 31, 2014

USD Effect EUR Effect

Profit/Loss Increase 6.741.596 1.076.443
Profit / Loss (Decrease) (6.741.596) (1.076.443)

USD Effect EUR Effect

8.854.172 1.305.116
(8.854.172) (1.305.116)
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Company is required to manage its interest rate risks due to price fluctuations in its financial
instruments arising from changes in interest rates. The Company’s sensitivity to interest rate risk
results from the mismatch in maturities of its assets and liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by
offsetting the assets that are affected by the interest rate fluctuations against the liabilities in same
nature.

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total Effect on profit and profit reserves
Market interest rate increase / (decrease) TL

+%1 (2.543.897) (3.141.322)
-%1 2.711.985 3.319.461
Financial assets available for sale Effect on profit and profit reserves
Market interest rate increase / (decrease) TL
+%1

Price risk

The Company is exposed to price risk due to its available for sale financial assets. As of the
reporting date, if data used in the valuation method is increased/decreased by 10% and all variables
remain fixed, the Company’s sensitivity is as follows. The sensitivity of the Company for the price
risk is arising from the available for sale financial assets as of December 31, 2014.

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total Effect on Financial assets available for sale
Price increase I (decrease) TL

+%10
-%10
Credit risk

27.170.363
(27.170.363)

16. 140.988
(16. 140.988)

Credit risk is the risk that the debtor defaults on its obligations under the terms of the transaction.
Credit risk is managed by setting out limits and providing guarantees for receivables from a
specific party. Limits and guarantees are determined based on the assessment of the respective
party’s financial ability and trading capacity. The Company is exposed to credit risk in Turkey
because it mainly performs its operations in Turkey.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has presented its receivables from insurance operations
and guarantees received and provision for doubtful receivables in Note 12.1.

(2.543.897)
2.711.985

(3.141.322)
3 .3 19.461
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility of non-performance of the Company’s due liabilities. Events that
give rise to funding shortages, such as; market deteriorations and decrease in credit ratings, are
the main reasons of liquidity risk. The Company manages its liquidity risk through having
adequate cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfill its current and possible liabilities by
allocating its funds.

Liquidity risk table

Decem her 31, 20 14

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Ft nanctal Assets Available ror Sale
lnvestnn,nls with Risks on Policy Holders
Receivables From Main Operations
Due fromRelated Panics

Other Receivables
Prepnid Expenses and loronu Accruals
Other Current Assets

Financial Assets
Tangible Fixed Assets
Intangible Fixed Assels

Up to I month I -3 month 3 months-I year

68 .597 .569
20 .05 0.893

4.723.103
130.897.181

71.723

- 7.180.125
17.974.724 30.602.907 84.586.514

225.891 - 6,284.761

8 19.757.469
271 .7 03 .6 27

7 .2 9 5 .9 9 5
324.806.900

7 1.723
7.880.125

133.1 64.145
6.510.652

7.961-251 7.961-251
25.369.620 25.369.620
25.850.207 25.850.207

Long TermPrepaid Expenses and Inconu
Arrrusln
Other Non-current Assets

- 1.784.100 - 1.784.100
9.024.367 9.024.367

lotal Assets 347.344.833 657.335-212 315,2 11.744 94.729.660 84.632.019 141.926.713 1.64t.t80.t8t

Psysbtes FromMsin Operations . . 108.035.614 - - - I 08.035.614

Duets Related Psnics 343591 - 1.145 - - - 344.736
Other Psyables . 39.282.658 . - - - 39.282.651
Insurance Technical Reserves 192.470.025 287.351.543 400.342.784 - . - 880.164.352

Taxes and OtherLisbilities and Provisions - 14.507.838 - - - - 14.507.838
Cost Expense Provisions . - 17.924.032 - - - I 7.924.032
Accruals 4.151.370 7.067.924 1 8.358.173 - . 29577.467

Long TermlnauranceTcchnicat Reserves . . - 1.972.202 38.577.088 - 40.549.290
l’rovtsions for Other Risks . . - - - 2.813.302 2.813.302
Shareholders Equity . . . - . 507.980.899 507.980.899

Total Liabililies and Shareholders’ Equity 196.964.986 348.209.956 544.661.748 1.972.202 38.577.088 510.794.201 1.641.180.181

Liquidity Surplus 5 (Deorit) 150.379.847 309.125.256 (229.450.004) 92.757.458 46.054.931 (368.867.488)

244.207-2 14

84 .93 7 .004

5 05 .7 9 6 .2 0 0
4 .0 8 3 .2 65

108-972.7 IS

I •5 years 5 years sod over No nutority

90.372.668
2.572.892

8 4.6 3 2 .0 5 9

Total

1.156.486
72.564.712
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk table
December 31, 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets Available mr Sale
Inves Insanis with Risks on Policy Holders
Receivables Pros’s Main Operalions

Due from Related Parties
Giber Receivables
Prepaid Expenses and lscsinsx Accruals
GIber Curren I Assess

Fin anci as As sets
TangibleFixed Assess
Intangible Fixed Assess

Up so I mosib I .3 ss~nlh 3 months-s year

91.724.119
24.788495

6 .5 38 .689
119.079.577

67 .3 14
5.792.454

17.184.500 29.257.510 77.711.705
22 . 2,1 89.877

901:772.398

161.4 0 9 .82 3
6.538.689

295.482.821

67.314
5 .7 9 2 .4 5 4

- 124.153.715
2.129.899

7.961.251 7.961.251
11.374.660 11.374.660
l9.986.929 19.986.928

10.5 34 A 19
I .547,264432

Categories of Financial Assets:

J~ceiafrr 31,2014 Decenlrr 31,2013
Current Finairial Assets Book Value Fair Value Dcxi Value Fair Value

Flnanzial Assets Available fcr Sale 271.703.627 271.703.627 161.4(9.883 161.4(9.883
Hnanoial Investnents with Risks cn Policy Hoktrs 7.295.995 7.295.995 6.538.689 6.538.689

Non-Current Finarxtial Assets

Affiliates 30.116.653 30.116.653 30.116.653 30.116.653
Jninirmsnt PixMsion for Affiliates (22.155.402) (22.155.402) (22.155.402) (22.155.402)

Total Finairial Assets 286.961873 286.960.873 175.Th.823 175.9(9.823

3 1,3 78 448

77.268.758

67 2 .7 56.5 64
7 .3 23 .443

99,1 34,486

5 -5 years 5 years and over 14° malarisy

101.2 74 .744

To I a

3.803.072
5,91 3,267

24 .2 20. 5 29

Other N os-currens Assels - . . - . 10,534.419
l’otal Assels 225,831.728 514,264,457 322.099,776 101,274.744 3,853.572 79.990.655

Payables From Main Operations - . 104,789,191 - . - 104.789,191

Duels Related Parlies 527.168 . . . . 527.168
Giber Paysbies - 43,075,754 . 3,867.930 - . 44.943.684
Insurance Technical Reserves 156.574.775 237,026.5 8 369.482.090 . - - 763.083,383
Taxes and Olher Liabilities tad Provisions . 59,841.340 - . . 19,841.340

Cost Expense Provisions - ‘ 7.530429 - . 7530429
Accruals 4,031,708 6.864,194 17,829,008 - - 28.724.910

Long Term Issorance Technical Reserves . - - 2,167.174 30.723.954 - 32,891.128
Provisions for Olhes Risks . . . . - 2.244.706 2.244,706
Shareholders’ Equily . . . 53~9s 493 532,688493
Thlal Liabilities aad Shareholders’ Equily 161.133,651 306.s57.506 509.630,7 IS 4.035.104 30.723.954 534.933.199 I .547,264432

Liquidisy Ssrplsa / (Deficit) 64.695.077 507.456.651 (I 57.530.942) 97.239.640 (26.920.882) (454.942,544)
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction in accordance with market
conditions.

The Company determines the estimated fair value of its financial instruments by using the current
market information and appropriate valuation methods. Additionally, ability to estimate the market
values through assessing the market information requires interpretation and judgment. As a result,
the estimations presented herein cannot be an indicator of the amounts obtained by the Company in
a current market transaction.

The fair value of financial assets shown in the following table in terms of valuation methods is
shown divided into three categories. ‘Category 1”, was organized market obtained from fair values
(market data), the “Category 2” precedent that has truth according to processes and “Category 3” is
the future cash flows to their present reduced according to the values that are valued financial
assets represents.

Fma~ia1 Assets Available for sale
Unlisted Equity Shares
(le~tmnrnt Bonds & ‘lTheasuiy Bills
lnwstnrnt Rinds

Finaitial Jnveslnrnts with Risks on Policy Hoklers
Affiliates, i~t (*)
Tcal

Finamial Assets Available for sale
Unlisted Equity Shares
Gvemnrnt Bonds & Treasury Bills

Financial InvesUmnts with Risks on Policy Hokiers
Affiliates, ret (*)
TcAal

Deccnfrr 31,2014 Category 1 Category 2 Category 3

271.703.627 271.703.627 - -

211.320 211.320
199.13&845 199.138.845
72353.462 72353.462

7.295.995 7.295.995 . -

7.961.251 - . 7.961.251
28fi9~.873 278.999.622 - 7.961.251

31 Deceni~r 2013 Category I Categ~y2 Category 3

16l.4~.883 l61.4(&883 - -

220.125 220.125 -

161.189.758 161.189.758
6.538.689 6.538.689
7.961.251 - 7.961.251

175.9C~.823 167.948,572 . 7.961.251

(9 The Company has booked the impairment provision for Merter DV, one of the affiliates, amounting toTh 22.155.402
in its financial statements as of December31, 2014 (December31, 2013: TL 22.155.402).

The following methods and assumptions are used in fair value estimations for financial instruments
of which their fair value cannot be practically measured:
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4. Insurance and Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.2.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial assets:

It is anticipated that fair value of the financial assets including cash and cash equivalents and other
financial assets carried at cost will approximate to their book value based on their short term nature
and having insignificant potential losses. Market value is taken as a basis in the measurement of fair
value of government bonds and equity shares.

Financial liabilities:

It is anticipated that fair value of monetary liabilities will approximate to their carrying value based
on their short term nature.

5. Segment information

5.1 Operating segments

Information related to the operational reporting made by the Company to the chief operating
decision-maker in the accordance with the “TFRS 8 - Operating Segments” is disclosed in this part.

Numerical limits in “TFRS 8 - Operating Segments” is also considered as the reporting to the chief
operating decision-maker in the determination of segments and segments those constitute premium
production and net technical income are determined as a separate operating segment.

The Company operates in Turkey. Since the results of operating activities abroad have very low
effect on financial statements, the information about geographical has not been given.
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5. Segment information (Continued)

5.1 Operating segments (Continued)

Segment results for the periond ended at December 31, 2014:

‘TECHNICAL INCOME
I - l3aoxrd Preoxiw,on (Net off Reinsorer 9oare)
1.1- Premionos (Net ofReinsoorer Oxare)
1.2- Chano, in Unearned Prensiosno Reserve (Net ofkeinoorers9iareaandResenseo CarriedForsnrd) (4/-)

1.3- Oaangeaio Unespired Risks Reserve (Net of Reinsteer Niaee and RearrvesCaeaied Fonsned)(4-)
2- Other Technical income (Net ofkeinoinsonce 9aare)

3ECHNICAUE’J’F7~SfS
I-Total Claims (Net of Reinasree Snaee)
Ii- Claims Paid (Net ofReinoorer Thare)
1.2- Changes in OogaoanillagClaima Reserve (Net of Reionoeer 9nareanslReserveo CarriedFsrnnrd) (4/-)

2- Oaaneeo in Oilier Teehoiesol Reoerves(Nen ofReinooree Snare andReoerven Carried Fbraard)(4-) andooherTeelnnieal Expensro
3. Operating Expenaso
4- OiherTeehaicai Expenmo (Net of Reinseer Saaee) (-)

Investment income
Depeeeialinn expense
Provisions account
Tax expenses
Finaneiai expenses
Onher
Net Penflt/(Loon)

Land Vehicles
Fire and Natuni Pilsner Own Liability Other

Disaster Transportation Damage (Compulsory Traflie) Arcidrol Engineering Agriculture Health Life Unndiolribnned Trial

132.953.867 16.643.323 507.053.911 245.639360 122.130.113 16.385.959 27.404.776 103.964.920 136229 . 1.278313.127
122.441.444 14.522.1)4 460691.610 241.632.060 108.252.913 14.816.356 26.469.904 193.190.194 17.711 . 0.190.025.014
127.657.490 14.909.752 502.452.126 218.657.530 110.110.963 17.005.440 27.364.537 199.744.859 17.722 - 1.217.979.619
(5,216.046) (387.010) (33.760.516) 27.882.975 (5.797.330) (2.099,084) (894.553) (6.553.865) (II) - (26.925.440)

- - - (4.900.437) 3.879280 - - - - - (1.029.157)

16.512.423 2.120.589 30362370 4.007.892 13.877.200 1.579.603 934.792 10.774.726 118.510 - 00200.113

(110.422.900) (0.440.864) (465.935.748) (322.245.067) (04.902.830) (9.896.856) (32.417.405) (201.726.944) (698.323) . (1236.606.937)
(55.171.165) (4.454.159) (333.140.996) (250.987.947) (43.610.925) (7.562.229) (20.901.323) (138.973.214) (454.219) - (863.352.177)
(40.900.722) (3.802.364) (321.030.738) (219.025.303) (21.334.038) (7.253.926) (21.469.405) (131.794.707) (490.001) - (775.270.004)

(6.190.443) (1.371.795) (12.110258) (39.062.644) (22284.087) (308.303) 488.082 (7.178.427) 43.782 - (80.802.893)
(6.271.920) (46) (1.303.923) - (101.563) (95.673) - - 207.831 - (7.645.302)

(44.170.376) (3.913.061) (104.116.344) (60.679.049) (40.253.637) (1.920.376) (11.346.631) (50.306.809) (451.935) - (325.i59.018)
(4.809.431) (72.798) (27.286.405) (2.578.071) (920.785) (310.570) (09.451) (4.446.921) - (40.530.440)
28.530.967 8.202.459 41.118,232 (76.615.117) 37.227,203 6.489.103 (5.012.629) 2.237.976 (562.091) . 41.626.190

- - - - - - - - - 120.169257 120.169.257
- . - - - . . - (4.678.677) (4.670.677)
. - - - - - - - - (15,698,586) (15.698.306)

- - - - - - - - (7541.703) (7.541.703)
. - - - - . - . . (110.770.504) (110.770.504)
- - - - - - - - - (506.415) (508.415)

28,530367 8.202.459 41.118.232 (76.605.107) 37227283 6.489.103 (5.012.629) 2.237.976 (562.094) (11.018.708) 30.607.482
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5. Segment information (Continued

5.1 Operating segments (Continued)

Segment results for the periond ended at December 31, 2013:

laud Vehicles
Motor Own liability Other

1UDIINICAL INCOME
I- EarnedPremiuaas (Nd .11 Reinsurer tare)

- Premiums (Net olReinsnrer tare)
1.2- (lange in Unearned Premiums Reserve (Nd of Reiesoerrstares and Reserves Canned Forward) (-5]-)

.3- Cusegen in Uaenpiroi Risks Reserve (Net or Reinsurer tare and Reserves Canned l’nrward)(]-)
2- Dikes Technical Income (Net or Reiasaraoer tare)

UEIINICALE4PEZ4SOS
I. Total Cairns (Net of Reinsurer tare)
II- Cairns Paid (Net ofReinureer tare)
.2- Onanger in Oaioarnlingclairns Reserve (Net of Reinsurer tare and Rroroveu CasniolFonnard) (ti-)

2- (langes is Other Technical Reserves (Net of Reinsurer tare and Reserves Canned IervardlW-) and Other Technical Expenses

3- Operating Expenses
4- Other Technical Eaprooes (Net ofReiasorer tare) (-)

Fire and Natural
Disaster Trasnapornalino Damage (Compulsory Traffic) Accident Engineering Agriculture IIralIh Lire Undislrilau(rd Total

Inisrnnmena income
l)epreeiatio nexpenar
Pros isioaa aeeriril
Tax expense
Financial expenses
Other
Nec Profit I (Loss)

104.011.686 12.343.233 443.160139 227.160.744 89.736.576 15.902.501 20.773.954 100.8(6.503 060.000 - 1.095.637.3)6

94562.06) 11.312.764 422.027.320 215.296.317 11.6)7.707 04560.787 2o,340.oro 74.062.333 27.695 - 1.035.477.071

111.361.576 lt.4g4.165 434.905.794 239.040.113 95.096.0)7 07.262.369 20.004.055 83.267.704 27.110 - I.113530,023

(16.799,516) (243.290) (11.258.466) (33.692.992) (5.009.579) (2.700.502) (763.975) (1.405.371) 5115 - (70(94.0(7)
. 71.89) - 9.948.196 (9.18(851) - - - - - 831.235

00.249.626 1.030.469 20.332.911 I l.(64A27 0.040.869 1.420.714 433.874 5.944.250 034.005 - 60,160.245

(75.473394) (7.492.661) (302566.600) (2193)5.405) (01.562.530) (10.842.622) (24.417.492) (181.825371) (143.745) . (984.340316)

(27.511,557) (4547.749) (267.218.755) (160.76951)) (40.477.752) (5.257.191) (19.027.139) (127.624.705) (069.420) - (661.303.7(1)
(28.098.912) (2.902.012) (270.761.659) (062.401367) (19.9)7.277) (6.105.944) ((6.907.427) (126.423.105) (137.9201 - (642505.623)

5)7.355 (1565.737) 11.542.9)4 (6.36)146) (20.490.475) (48.753 (2.119.712) (1.201.600) 131.5011 - (18,7918.15))

(5.4(7.072) 93,244) (2.079.084) - (20.40)) (134.430) - . 429.320 - (0.094.935)

(39,397.334) (2.927.049) (90.070.769) (51.076.791) (42.372.344) (4.874.722) (5.351.462) (50,042.70 I) (403.646) - (2)7.416.02))
(3.077,43!) (04,639) (22.290.000) ((.669.101) 307.976 (576.271) 130.091) 14.15)555) - (37,524.972)

29.330.292 4.050.572 ((593.631 (2.154.741) 0.174.031 5.139.079 (3.643.530) (1.0)9300) 50.055 . 101.296.800

. - - - - . - - 97.747.600 97.747.6n0
- - - - - - - - (3.0(2.335) (3.082.335)

. . - - - - . - - (40.292.793) (40.292.793)

. - . - - . - - (25.714.660) (25.734,6(0)

. . - - - - (000.553.109) (90.853.109)

- - - - - - - - - 0(2.493.536 112.493.536

29530292 4.150.572 60.593.631 (2.154.741) 8.074.030 5.039.079 (3.643.538) (1.059300) 00.055 58.470239 059.775.039
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6. Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2014
Other Tangible

Owner Furnitures and Assets (Including Advances for
Occupied Fixtures and Leased Leasehold Tangible

Cost Value Ptoperties Vehicles Tangible Assets In~rovenents) Assets Total

January I 8.270.093 - 21.715.931 1.122.357 - 31.108.381
Additions - - 1.211.514 1.390.572 18.772.557 21.374.644
Disposals (5.804.745) - (11.016.842) (27.151) - (16.848.739)

Transfer 2.917,122 15,826.931 (18.744.053)
Decenter 31 2.465.348 - 14.827.725 18.312.709 28.504 35.634.286

Accuinilated Depreciation
January I (1.754.216) - (17.725.622) (1,097.201) - (20.487.039)
OiargeforthePeriod (155.435) - (1.190.944) (418.667) (1.765.046)
Disposals 1.276.323 . 10.192.501 26.045 - 11.494.869
Deceiniber3l (633.328) . (8.724.065) (1.399.823) - (10.757.216)
Net Book Value as of Decenter 31 1.832.020 . 6.103.660 16.912.886 28.504 24.877.069

December 31, 2013

Olher Tangible
Owner Furnitures and Assets (Including Advances for

Occupied Fixiures and Leased Leasehold Tangible
Cost Value Properties Vehicles Tangible Assets Ini,roven~nIs) Assets Total

January I 38.837.294 32.050 21.545.184 2.447.156 62.861.684
Additions - ~7409 . . 607409
Disposals (30.567.201) (32.050) (436.653) (1.324.799) (32.360.703)
Decenrber3l 8.270.093 . 21.715.931 1.122.357 . 31.108.381

Accunulated Depreciation
January I (12.082.503) (32.050) (16.951.096) (2.256.932) (31.322.491)
CoargeforthePeriod (163.598) - (1.178.282) (18.227) . (1.360.107)
Disposals 10.491.885 - 403.379 1.267.958 . 12.163.222
Decenuber 31 (1.754.216) (32.050) (17.725.909) (1.097.201) . (20.519.376)
Net Book Valueas ofDecenter3l 6.515.877 (32.050) 3.990.022 115.156 - 10.589.095

The Company has no impairment loss recognized for tangible fixed assets in the current period.
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7. Investment Properties

December 31,2014

December 31,2013

Cost Value

January 1
Disposals
December 31

Accumulated Depreciation
January 1
Charge for the Period
Disposals
December31

Net Book Value as of December31

Land Buildings Total

286.578 557.574 844.152
- 1.782 1.782

(250.000) (54.812) (304.812)
36.578 504.543 541.121

- (58.497) (58.497)
- (886) (886)
- 10.812 10.812
- (48.571) (48.571)

36.578 455.973 492.551

Land Buildings Total

286.578 567.611 854.189
- (10.037) (10.037)

286.578 557.574 844.152

- (113.602) (113.602)
- (17.084) (17.084)
- 72.189 72.189
- (58.497) (58.497)

286.578 499.077 785.655

In the period of January 1-December31, 2014, the Company has obtained rental income from
investment properties amounting to TL 155.949 (January 1 — December 31, 2013: TL297.399).

(*) The Company has sold the building that Ankara Region Headquarters is located, in amounting to TL

10.000.000 in October 1,2014.

Cost Value

January 1
Additions
Disposals (*)
December31

Accumulated Depreciation
January 1
Charge for the Period
Disposals
December31

Net Book Value as of December 31
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8. Intangible Fixed Assets

December 31, 2014

Advances for
Cost Value Intangible Assets (9 Rights Total

1 January 14.144.327 18. 183.940 32.328.267
Additions 8.200.593 567.429 8.768.023
Disposals - - -

Transfer (10.127.897) 10.127.897 -

December31 12.217.024 28.879.266 41.096.290

Accumulated Amortization
1 January - (12.341.338) (12.341.338)
Charge for the Period - (2.904.745) (2.904.745)
Disposals - - -

December 31 - (15.246.083) (15.246.083)
Net Book Value as of December31 12.217.024 13.633.183 25.850.207

December 31, 2013
Advances for

Cost Value Intangible Assets (*) Rights Total

1 January 4.709.039 17.310.744 22.019.783
Additions 9.435.288 1.352.029 10.787.317
Disposals - (478.833) (478.833)
December31 14.144.327 18.183.940 32.328.267

Accumulated Amortization
1 January - (10.006.232) (10.006.232)
Charge for the Period - (2.505.144) (2.505. 144)
Disposals - 170.038 170.038
December31 - (12.341.338) (12.341.338)
Net Book Value as of December31 14.144.327 5.842.602 19.986.929

(*) Intangible assets advances include the administrative advances for the projects implemented. Since the related
assets do not create economical benefits no amortization calculated over those.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has not recognized any impairment loss for its
intangible fixed assets in the current period (December 31, 2013: None).

The Company has no goodwill amount in its financial statements.
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9. Investments in Affiliates

An affiliate is an entity, over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies. As of December 31, 2014, the Company has an affiliate as Merter BV amounting
to TL 30.116.653 (December 31, 2013: TL 30.116.653) with a 25% of participation. Since the
Company do not have any effect on management of this affiliate the conclusive participation rate
is 12,5% for each companies which own a shopping mall and an office building.

Fair value of the investments in affiliates have identified by an independent real estate appraisal
company and, TL 22.155.402 (December 31, 2013: TL 22.155.402) impairment has been
detected and disclosed in financial statement as at December 31, 2014 (Note: 11.4).

10. Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are disclosed in Note 17.16.

11. Financial Assets

11.1 Subcategories of Financial Assets

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Financial Assets Available for Sale 271.703.627 161.409.883
Financial Investments with Risks on Policy Holders 7.295.995 6.538.689
Total 278.999.622 167.948.572

Financial Assets Available for Sale
Decenther3l,2014 Decentr3l,2013

Cost Value Fair Value Book Value Cost Value Fair Vahie Book Value

TL Th ‘IL it ‘IL

Debt Securities 45.977.771 44.224.473 44.224.473 9.235.694 3.122516 3.122516
Private sector bond 103.866.757 102909.210 102.909.210 132.633.243 134.067.238 134.057.238
Investrmnt fund 67.885.811 72.353.462 72353.462 24.CtXUXXJ 24.020.034 24.~0.0J4
Eurobonds 52.273.063 52.035.162 52035. 162 - - -

Equity Shares (Un]ist&0 211.320 - 211.320 220.125 - 220.125
Total 267.214.722 271.492.307 271.703.627 166.089.052 161.189.758 161.409.883

Financial Investntnts with Risks on Policy Holders
Decenter 31,2014 Decen~r 31,2013

Cost Value Fair Value Book Value Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
it it it it it it

Covemn~nt Bonds 6.916.542 7.295.995 7.295.995 6.333.933 6.53&689 6.538.689
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11. Financial Assets (Continued)

11.1 Subcategories of Financial Assets (Continued)

Equity shares under financial assets available-for-sale is as below:

December 31, 2014

Equity Shares Participation Rate Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
TL TL TL

Tarsim Tarim Sigortalan Havuz
I~letmesiA.S. 4,35 211.320 - 211.320
Unlisted 211.320 - 211.320
Total 211.320 - 211.320

December 31, 2013

Equity Shares Participation Rate Cost Value Fair Value Book Value
% TL TL TL

Tarsim Tanm Sigortalan Havuz
I~letmesiA.S. 4,35 220.125 - 220.125
Unlisted 220.125 - 220.125
Total 220. 125 - 220.125

The Company do not have assets held for trading as of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the blockage on financial assets in favour of
Undersecretariat of Treasury has been disclosed in Note 17.1.

11.2 Securities other than equity shares issued in the current period:

None (December 31, 2013: None).

11.3 Securities issued representing the amortized borrowing in the current period:

None (December 31, 2013: None).
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11. Financial Assets (Continued)

11.4 Fair value of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at cost in the
balance sheet and cost of securities and long-term financial assets that are carried at fair
value in the balance sheet

Cost, fair value and book values of marketable securities are presented in Note 11.1.

Financial assets consist of unlisted assets, and cost and book value of financial assets are
presented as below:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Rate Rate Cost Value Book Value
TL% TL

Merter BV 25 30.116.653 30.116.653 25 30.116.653 30.116.653
Impairment (-) . (22. 155.402) - (22.155.402)
Affiliates, (Net) 30.116.653 7.961.251 30.116.653 7.961.251

Marketable securities issued by the shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries of the
Company classified under marketable securities and associates and their issuers:

None (December 31, 2013: None).

Value increases of financial assets in the last three years

Type of Financial Asset
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Financial Assets Available for Sale (838.117) (5.312.432) 183.320
Value increases and decreases (net off deferred taxe) reflect the difference between the book
value and cost value of the financial assets at period end.

11.7 Financial Instruments

i) Information that enables the financial statement users to evaluate the financial position
and performance of the Company is disclosed in Note 4.1.

ii) Information on the book value of the financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iii) Comparison of the fair value and book value of financial assets is disclosed in Note 11.1.

iv) Financial assets overdue or impaired are presented in Note 11.1.

Participation Participation

11.5

11.6
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11. Financial Assets (Continued)

11.8. Finansal Instruments

Information related to hedge accounting has been disclosed in Note 34.5.

11.9 Effects of Exchange Rate Differences

Exchange rate differences arising from the payments of monetary items or different conversion
rates used in the current period or at initial recognition are recognized in profit or loss.

12. Receivables and Payables

12.1 Details of the Company’s receivables

Decemlxr 31,2014 December 31,2013

Receivables from insurance operations
Receivables from agencies 204.445.375 183.910,286
Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables More than Three Months 80.433.726 81.420.070
Receivables from reinsurance and insurance companies 19.781.691 18.142.690
Receivables for salvage and claim recovery - net (Note 2.1.1) 23.121.634 15.048.580
Receivables from insurance operations 327.782.426 298.521.626

Other receivables 60.878 75.793
Cash de~sited for insurance and reinsurance companies 30.954 30.954
Receivables from insurance and reinsurance companies 91.832 1O&747

Claim recovery receivables under legal follow-up 35.003.756 33.032.447
Doubtful receivables from main operations 29.075.053 22.056.826
Receivables frommain operations 391.950.067 353.717.646

Provision for due from insurance operations (.) (~) (6.876.269) (7.511.240)
Provision for doubtful receivables from main operations (-) (‘~‘9 (25.266.142) (17.691.138)
Provision for net claim recovery receivables under legal follow-up (.) (‘“c) (35.003.756) (33.032.447)
Total pmvision amount for doubtful receivables (67.143.167) (58.234.825)

Receivables from main operations . net 324.806.900 295.482.821

(*) In balance sheet disclosed under provision for receiveables from insurance operations.
(**) In balance sheet disclosed under provision for receiveables from main operations.
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12. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

12.1 Details of the Company’s Receivables

Aging of receivables from insurance operations is as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

0-60 days 2.356.713 6.533.852

61-90 days 1.519.694 1.418.385

90+ 2.982.514 3.793.890

Not due receivables 321.015.336 286.882.246
Total 327.874.258 298.628.373

The details of guarantees for the Company’s receivables are presented below:

December 31,2014 December 31,2013
Type of Guarantee Receivables Doubtful Receivables Receivables Doubtful Receivables

Letters of Guarantee 33.450.078 21.000 30.503.113 5.000
Real Estate Pledges 69.410.917 5.116.497 67.089.321 5.340.947
Government Bonds and Equity 89.747 - 436.925 -

Other 454.359 - 171.664 -

Total 103.405.101 5.137.497 98.201.023 5.345.947

The Company books provision for 100% of doubtful receivables discluding guarantess. The
movement table of provision for doubful receivables under legal follow-up is presented below:

2014 2013

Opening Balance, 1 January (50.723.585) (45.025.162)
Charge for the Period (22.167.522) (23.352.219)
Collections 12.624.209 17.653.796
Closing Balance, December 31 (60.266.898) (50.723.585)

Aging of receivables from insurance operations is as follows:

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

90+ 64.075.809 55.089.273

Total 64.075.809 55.089.273

12.2 Receivable-payable relationship with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries of the
Company

Due to shareholders in balance sheet includes dividends which have paid previous years but not
collected by shareholders. as of December 31, 2014, the Company has liabilities amounting to
TL 1.145 to shareholders. (December 31, 2013: None)

12.3 Total of pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amount

Total amount of pledges and other guarantees received for receivables amounts to
TL 103.405.101 as at December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 103.546.970).
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12. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

12.4 Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate
guarantees are presented below:
December 31,2014

Banks (Foreign Currency)

USD

EUR
GBP
Total

Prepaid Expenses

IJSD
Total

Marketable Securities

USD
Total

Receivables from Insurance Operations

USD
EUR

GBP
CHF

Other
Total

Outstanding Claims Reserve

USD
EUR

Other
Total

Payables from Insurance Operations

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (TL)

6.334.148 2,3189 14.688.256

3.609.429 2,8207 10.181.116
188 3,5961 676

24.870.048

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (IT.)

2.768.885 2,3189 6.420.767
6. 420. 767

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (U)

22.542.181 2,3189 52.273.063
52.273.063

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (U)

27.606.553 2,3189 64.016.836

6.680.703 2,8207 18.844.259
80.253 3,5961 288.598
22.061 2,3397 51.616

215
83.201.524

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (TL)

(4.020.728) 2,3230 (9.340.151)

(986.640) 2,8258 (2.788.047)
(46.374)

(12.174.572)

Amount in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Amount (U)

USD

EUR
Other
Total

Net Foreign Currency Position

(26. 158. 652)

(5.487.266)

2,3189 (60.659.298)

2,8207 (15.477.931)
(710.988)

(76.848.217)

77.742.613
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12. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

12.4 Details of the Company’s foreign currency denominated receivables without exchange rate
guarantees are presented below: (Continued)

Decenter 31, 2013
Banks (Foreign Currency)

USD
EUR
~3BP
OW
Other
Total

Receivables from Insurance Operations

USD
EUR
GEP
CHF
Other
Total

Outstanding Clairm Reserve

USD
EUR
Other
Total

Payables from Insurance Operations

Anrunt in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Anrunt (‘It)

40.320.235 2,1343 86.055.478
3.478.836 2,9365 10.215.602

110.799 3,5114 389.060
32.361 2,3899 77.340

4.995
96.742.475

Anrunt in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Anrunt (FL)

20.031.933 2,1343 42.754.155
5.206.617 2,9365 15.289.231

56.644 3,5114 198.903
24.449 2,3899 58.431

409
58.301.126

Anrunt in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Anrunt (TL)

(2.064.461) 2,1381 (4.414.024)
(567.107) 2,9418 (1.668.315)

(591)
(6. 082.930)

Anrunt in Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Aimunt (It)

(16.802.57~
(3.673.88~

2,1343 (35.861.738)
2,9365 (10.788.36~

(472.294)
(47.122.398)

101.838.273

USD
EUR
Other
Total

Net Foreign Currency Position
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13. Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2014 ,the Company has no derivative financial instruments (December 31,
2013: None). During the period between January 1 — December 31, 2014, total income resulting
from short-term swap contracts’ market valuation has booked TL 9.663.974 under the income
statement as an income from derivatives (January 1—December31, 2013: None).

14. Cash and Cash Equilavents

December3l,2014 December 31, 2013

Cash at Banks
Time Deposit
Demand Deposit

Bank Guaranteed Credit Card Receivables with
Maturities less than three months
Total
Interest Accrual on Cash and Cash Equivalents (-) ______________ ______________

Cash Flow Based Grand Total

Blocked Deposits (*) 131.314.451 109.499.385

(9 The blockage on cash and cash equivalents has been disclosed in Note 17.1.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, interest rate of time deposits are as follows:

5,85 - 9,80
1,00 - 3,55

2,85

As of December 31, 2014 maturity of TL deposits are changed between January 2, 2015 to June
23, 2015, foreign exchange maturity are changed between January 2, 2014 to January 23, 2014.

As of December 31, 2013 maturity of TL deposits are changed between January 2, 2014 to
September 26, 2014, foreign exchange maturity are changed between January 3, 2014 to
February 7,2014.

623.405.482
622.248.996

1.156.486

196.35 1.987
819.757.469

(3.551.136)
816.206.333

732.774.746
726. 861.479

5.9 13.267

168.997.652
901.772.398

(1.989.207)
899.783.191

TL
uso
EUR

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Annual Interest Rate (%) Annual Interest Rate (%)
8,25- 11,50

0,50 - 2,00
0,75
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15. Share Capital

15.1 Transactions between the Company and its shareholders, showing each distribution made
to the shareholders separately

The Company’s shareholders and its shareholders’ equity structure as of December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 are presented in Note 2.14.

The details of the transactions between the Company and its shareholders and the related
balances as of the end of the period are presented in “Related Parties” note.

15.2 Reconciliation of carrying values of each capital account and each reserve as of the
beginning and end of the period showing each change separately

Presented in the statement of changes in equity.

15.3 For each class of share capital

15.3.1 The explanation about the number of capital shares

The Company’s issued capital share is composed of 30.600.000.000 shares having a nominal
amount of TL 0,01 each. These shares are presented by Class 10 shares (December 31, 2013:
30.600.000.000 shares with a nominal amount of TL 0,Oleach).

15.3.2 The explanation about the number of issued and fully paid shares and issued but not
fully paid shares

None (December 31, 2013: None).

15.3.3 Nominal value of an equity share or equity shares without having nominal value

Nominal value of equity shares is TL 0,01 per share (December 31, 2013: TL 0,01 per share).

15.3.4 Reconciliation of the number of the equity shares at the beginning and ending of the
period

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Issued in the Current Period
End of the Period, September 30

Decembcr 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000

30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000
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15. Share Capital (Continued)

15.3.5 Rights, privileges and limitations on dividend payments and repayment of share capital

In accordance with Article 61 of the Company’s Articles of Association, corporate tax is
deducted from the net profit which is determined and calculated based on the issued balance
sheet. 5% of statutory reserve is allocated over the remaining amount and subsequent to this
allocation, at minimum, 1. dividend amount that is determined by the CMB is also allocated over
the final remaining amount.
The Company’s capital does not include any preferred shares.
Based on the guidelines and principals issued by the Capital Markets Board (the Board) dated
January 27, 2010 for the distribution of dividends from the profit generated from operating
activities in 2010, concerning public entities, the shares of which are quoted in public equity
markets, it has been agreed upon not to set a mandatory minimum dividend payment quota
(December 31, 2013: 20%). Furthermore, it has been agreed upon to let public entities perform
dividend distributions as staded within the “Communique Concernins Principal Matters on
Dividend Advances Distributed by Public Entities Under the Regulation of the Capital Markets
Law” (Serial: lv, No: 27), as stated within the principal agreement of the companies and as stated
within the policies on dividend distribution that have been shared with the public.

15.3.6 Equity shares held by the Company, its affiliates or its subsidiaries

None (December 31, 2013: None).

15.3.7 Equity shares held for future sale for forward transactions and contracts

None (December 31, 2013: None).

15.4 Share based payments

None (December 31, 2013: None).

15.5 Subsequent events

Disclosed in note 46.

16. Other Provisions and Capital Component of Discretionary Participation

16.1 Each income and expense item and their total amounts accrued under shareholders’equity
in the current period in accordance with other standards and interprations

December 31,2014

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
(1.047.646) (6.640.540)

209.529 1.328. 108
(838.117) (5.312.432)

In accordance with changes regarding “TAS 19 — Employee Benefits” effective as of January 1,
2013, actuarial loss amounting to TL 1.200.112 (Deferred tax effect: TL 240.022) resulting
from retirement pay liability calculation has been accounted to extraordinary reserves under

As of December 31, 2014, effect of hedge accounting amount of TL (1.672.568) (Deferred tax
effect: TL 334.5 14) has been recognized “Special Funds (Reserves)” account item under equity.
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16. Other Provisions and Capital Component of Discretionary Participation (Continued)

16.2 Net exchange differences classified separately as an equity item and reconciliation of
exchange differences at the beginning and end of the period

None (December 31, 2013: None).

16.3 Hedging for forecasted transactions and net investment hedging

None (December 31, 2013: None).

16.4 Hedging against financial risks

Information related to hedge accounting has been disclosed in Note: 34.5(December 31, 2014:
None).

16.5 Gains and losses from available for sale financial assets recognized directly in equity for in
the currennt period and amounts recognizedin the current profit or loss taken from
shareholders’ equity

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Increase / (Decrease) Increase / (Decrease)

Beginning of the Period, January 1 (5.312.432) 183.320
Increase / decrease in value recognized under the
shareholders’ equity in the current period 4.474.315 (5.495.752)
End of the Period, December31 (838.117) 5.312.432

16.6 Income and loss related to affiliates recognized directly in equity in the current period

Disclosed in note 34.5 (December 31, 2013: None).

16.7 Revaluation increases in tangible fixed assets

None (December 31, 2013: None).

16.8 Current and deferred tax in relation to debit and credit items directly charged in equity

None (December 31, 2013: None).
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets

17.1 Guarantees to be providedfor life and non-life insurance branches and guarantees
provided for life and non-lifeinsurances based on assets

The Company’s guarantees to be provided for life and non-life insurance branches and
guarantees provided for life and non-life insurances based on assets are below:

December 31, 2014

Amount to be
Provided Current Blockage

December 31, 2013

Amount to be
Provided Current Blockage

Branch TL TL TL TL

Life 6.663.986 7.014.153 6.120.261 9.346.970
Government Bonds 6.822.532 6.538.418
Demand Deposit 191.621 2.808.552

Non-Life 110.924.551 131.122.830 101.498.161 106.690.833
Time Deposit 131.122.830 106.690.833

Total 117.588.537 138.136.983 107.618.422 116.037.803

17.2 Number of life insurance policies, additions, disposals
life insurees and their mathematical reserves

in the current period, and current

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Participations in the Current Period
Leavings in the Current Period
End of Period, December 31

2013
Mathematical

Reserves

Mathematical reserves amounting to TL 1.765.452 (December 31, 2013: TL 1.924.105) and
Reserves for the policies, investment risk of which belongs to life insurance polich holders
amounting to TL 206.750 (December 31, 2013: TL 243.069) and cancelled polich numbers
together with their mathematical reserves are included in the table above.

Financial assets classified as Financial Assets Ready For Sale under Financial Investments at
Policyholder’s Risk are valued with current value as explained in note 11; as of December 31,
2014, there is no difference in the value accounted in Life Mathematical Reserve account
discounted with current value (December 31, 2013: None).

2014
Mathematical

Reserves
Unit TL Unit TL

432 2.167.174 490 2.597.676
81.468 - 71.074

(30) (276.440) (58) (501.576)
402 1.972.202 432 2.167.174
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.3 Insurance guarantees given to non life insurances based on insurance branches

Branch December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Motor Vehicles Liability 2.749.912.022.379 2.928.484.514.020
Fire and Natural Disaster 401.507.218.558 346.803.096.110
Breach of Trust 286.605.330.906 404.286.660
General Losses 149.923.190.369 132.937.032.433
Transportation 47.635.716.522 36.946.440.146
Accident 35.208.773.175 30.701.620.815
Financial Losses 34.747.991.402 27.399.434.619
Motor Own Damage 29.260.438.332 20.448.800.280
General Losses 24.897.311.537 25.309.532.406
Air Vehicles Liability 15.752.119.800 22.863.679.840
Health 8.275.341.500 6.969.471.500
Legal Protection 7.006.920.272 6.633.820.376
Air Vehicles 2.132.858.236 5.228.068.240
Credit 1.143.233.376 2.009.379.900
Water Vehicles 477.441.619 378.524.179
Life 2.860.202 3.735.219
Total 3.794.488.768.185 3.593.521.436.743

17.4 Pension investment funds established by the Company and their unit prices

None (December 31, 2013: None).

17.5 Number and amount of participation certificates in portfolio and circulation

None (December 31, 2013: None).

17.6 Number of portfolio amounts of addidtions, disposals, reversals, and current individual
and group pension participants

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

17.7 Valuation methods used inprofit share calculation for life insurances with profit shares

None (December 31, 2013: None).

17.8 Number of the additions and their group or individual grossand net share participations
in the current period

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

74



AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.9 Number of additions from the other companies and their group or individual gross and
net shareparticipations in the current period

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

17.10 Number of transfers from the Company’s life portfolio to individualpension portfolio and
their group or individual gross and net share participations

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

17.11 Number of transfers fromthe Company’s individual pension portfolio to other company or
not and together their personal and corporate allocation and gross and net share
participations

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

17.12 Number of additions of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net
mathematical reserves

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

17.13 Number of disposals of life insurances and their group or individual gross and net
mathematical reserves

All of disposals of life insurances in current period are individual and units and amounts are
represented in Note 17.2.

17.14 Profit share distribution rate of life insurees in the current period

In the current period, profit share distribution rate of life insurees are calculated as below:

January 1- January 1-

December 31,2014 December31, 2013

Profit Share Distribution Rate Profit Share Distribution Rate
(%) (%)

TL (Life Insurance) 9,48 9,00

17.15 Explanation of information that describes amounts arose from insurance agreements

None (December 31, 2013: None).

75



AKSIGORTA A.S.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 2014
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized
when the insurer is a ceding company:

Reinsurance Assets
December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Receivables from Insurance and Reinsurance Companies 19.781.691 18.142.690
Cash Deposited For Insurance & Reinsurance Companies 30.954 30.954
Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve 264.326.090 201.635.515
Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Claims Reserve 179.963.599 169.380.958
Reinsurance Share of Unexpired Risks Reserve 8.955.838 21.717.571
Total 473.058. 172 410.907.688

Reinsurance Liabilities
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Payables to Insurance and Reinsurance Companies 84.547.691 88.171.883
Payables to Agencies 23.487.923 16.617.308
Deferred Commissions Income 29.577.467 28.724.910
Total 137.613.081 133.514.101

Income / Expense on Reinsurance Agreements
January 1- January 1-

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers (-) (495.635.867) (412.607.962)
Commissions Received 63.416. 172 53.577.851
Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premiums Reserve 42.454.109 50.788.265
Reinsurance Share of Unexpired Risks Reserve (12.761.734) 19.513.525
Reinsurance Share of Outstanding Claims Reserve 11.980.269 (26.780.293)
Reinsurance Share of Claims Paid 109.213.351 125.436.196
Total (281.333.700) (190.072.418)
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.16 Assets, liabilities, income, expense and cash flows from insurance contacts recognized
when the insurer is a ceding company: (Continued)

I~centr 31,2014 ~cen&r3l, 2013
Reinsurance Share of Reinstrance Sham of Râisurance Sham of Reinsurance Share of

Branch Preninm Cecicd Technical Resents Claim Paid Prenluim Ce&d Technical Resents Claim Paid
Fire and Natural Disaster (224A~.938) 13.247.961 37.247.605 (192.547.193) 3.270.039 21.219.787
~neraIL~ses (151.575.728) 10.537.089 41.530.201 (103.144.752) (33.055.807) 82.682.678

~neral Liability (27.039.339) 21.286.230 10.153.619 (22.873.7~ 48.383.737 5.649.378
Financial Lc~ses (24.927.164) 956.945 439.627 (21.260.413) 1.784.047 187.979
Mbtcr Veldcles Liability (21.998.619) (5,687.478) 2.244.254 (30.811.289) 8.733.537 3.499.703
Transj~tation (13.687.893) 3.929.612 4.194.603 (9.955.502) 2866.188 2521.942
Air Vehicics Liability (6.442.760) (10.386.720) 4.654.111 (6.054.351) 12549.286 470.235
Mctr0wnDannge (5.449.917) 571.207 3.240.811 (7.614.172) (2.150.407) 5.891.743
AirVehicics (4.472.666) (118.996) 215.563 (3.163.715) 1.174.563 46.315
Accident (3.855.818) 440.533 740.037 (3.2~.995) (807.492) 1.597.416
0-edit (3.234.289) 3.391.421 4.033.853 (3.803.296) 1.860.879 562.722
Breach of Trust (3.084.554) 1.2t5.6~ 175.183 (2.958.332) 344.641 653.812
Su~t (2.571.535) (350.379) - (3.135.416) (328.392) -

Health (1.601.342) 255.368 3.103 (1.039.550) (135.705) 221.538
Water Vehicics (1.253.482) 2.385.166 370661 (994.359) (903.208) 320.948
Life (3.814) (745) - (8.921) (4.051) -

Le~lProtecdc~ - (1) - - (3) -

Total (495.635.867) 41.672.818 103.211351 (412.607.962) 43.524.882 125.436.196

The Company, as a ceding company, defers its commission income obtained from reinsurance
agreements.

17.17. Comparison of incurred claims with past estimations

Disclosed in Note 4.1.2.3.

17.18. Effects of changes in the assumptions used in the measurement of insurance assets and
liabilities, showing the effects of each change that has significant effect on the financial
statements separately

Disclosed in note 4.1.2.4.
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17. Insurance Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (Continued)

17.19 Reconciliation of insurance payables, reinsurance assets and changes in deferred
acquisition costs, if any

2014
Insurance Payables Reinsurance Assets

133.514.101 410.907.688
4.098.980 62.150.484

137.613.081 473.058.172

2013
Insurance Payables

97.261.747
36.252.354

133.5 14. 101

Reinsurance Assets

383.474.340
27.433.348

410.907.688

18. Investment Contract Liabilities

Disclosed in Note 17.3.

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Net Change for the Year
End of the Period, Decemeber 31

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Net Change for the Year
End of the Period, Decemeber 31
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19. Trade and Other Payables, Deferred Income

19.1 Sub-classifications of presented items in line with the Company’s operations

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Payables to agencies 23.487.923 16.617.308
Payables to insurance and reinsurance companies 84.547.691 88.171.883
Payables from Insurance Operations 108.035.614 104.789.191

Payables to contracted enterprises 11.527.206 10.648.998
Payables to Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool 13.491.799 11.359.601
Payables to suppliers 2.535.941 4.399.758
Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool Payables to agencies 525.595 505.882
Other 679.152 539.145
Other Payables 28.759.693 27.453.384

Deposits and Guarantees Received

Payables to 551 regarding medical expenses (9 10.522.958 15.622.370

Deferred commission income 29.577.467 28.724.910
Expense accruals 17.924.032 17.530.429
Deferred Income and Expense Accruals 47.501.499 46.255.339

Total Short Term Liabilities 194.819.764 194.120.284

Payables to SSI regarding medical expenses (*) . 1.867.930
Total Long Term Liabilities - 1.867.930

Total ‘ftade and Other Payables, Deferred Income 194.819.764 195.988.214

(*) Movement of the payable to SSI related to medical expenses is presented below:

Beginning of the period; January 1, 2013 21.296.266

Premiums ceded to SSI (4) 24.718.602
Correction notified in 2012 related to premium ceded to SSI between 25 February
2011 -26 August 2011 (5) 1.082.977
The difference between notified liabilities for the year 2011 amount and the amount
calculated (6) 5.497.269
Premium payments to SSI (35.104.814)
End of the period - December 31, 2013 17.490.300

Beginning of the period; January 1, 2014 17.490.300
Premiums ceded to SSI (4) 19.616.808
Correction notified in 2012 related to premium ceded to SSI between 25 February
2011 -26 August 2011 (5) 1.082.977
The difference between notified liabilities for the year 2011 amount and the amount
calculated (6) 14.246
Premium payments to SSI (27.681.373)
End of the period - December 31, 2014 10.522.958
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19. Trade and Other Payables, Deferred Income (Continued)

19.1 Sub-classifications of presented items in line with the Company’s operations (Continued)

(I) As disclosed in Note 215, in accordance with the Communiqué numbered 2011/18, the Company has closed outstanding
claim files regarding the claims related to treatment expenses dated before the enforcement of the Law and “incurred but
not reported claims to be closed” calculated with respect to the related treatment expenses and classified the respective
amounts to the ‘Paid claims” account. In accordance with the Communiqué numbered 2011/18, the Company has
performed the ACLM provision calculations both including and excluding data related to treatment expenses as of March
31, 2011 and the difference between these calculations is determined as “incurred but not reported claims to be closed”.
Accordingly, the Company transferred the closed claim files regarding the claims related to treatment expenses dated
before the enforcement of the Law amounting to TL 3.783.062 and “incurred but not reported claims to be closed”
calculated in accordance with the Communiqué numbered 201 l/t8 amounting to TL 816.183 totally amounting to TL
4.599.245 to the account “Paid Claims” and classified the total amount to the account “Payables to SSt regarding medicat
expenses-long term”. In accordance with the Communiqué numbered 2011/18, the difference between the respective
liability amount notified by Treasury to the companies and the amount calculated as a result of the abovementioned
calculations with respect to the related period is accounted for under “Payables to 581 regarding medical expenses- short
term”, “Payables to 551 regarding medical expenses- long term” and charged to other technicat income or expense
account. In this context, the Company has deducted TI.. 1.533.082 from short Ierm payables, TL 3.066.163 from long term
payables from the related liability accounts and recognized a corresponding amount of income in the current period income
statement.

(2) As disclosed in Note 2.15, regarding the treatment expenses resulting from traffic accidents happening after the date of the
promulgation of the Code, the Company has to transfer the premiums determined within the scope of the Circular
numbered 2011/17 regarding the policies in the related branches issued after February 25, 2011 to 551 (Social Security
Institution). Within the frame of the above mentioned principles, the Company has recorded the amount of TL 11.113.969
as premiums transferred to SSt and calculated a reinsurance share for provisions for unearned premiums on daily basis
amounting to TL 6.303.656 over the said amount. In accordance with the principles stated in the Circulars numbered
2011/17 and 2011/18, as of December 31, 2011, the part of the premiums transferred to 551 within the period amounting to
TL 4.494.840 was recorded under “Payables to 551 regarding Treatment Expenses — Short Term” account and the
payments made until December31, 2011 were deducted from this account. The part of the premiums transferred to 551
within the period amounting to TL 6.6 19.129 was recognized under the “Payables to 551 regarding Treatment Expenses —

Long Term” account.

(3) Within the frame of the provisions of the Communiqué numbered 2011/17, in the event that a difference occurs between
the liabilities communicated to the companies by the Treasury and one third of the amounts found after the mentioned
calculation, corresponding to the related period, this difference is reflected under the “Payables to 581 regarding treatment
expenses” account in the balance sheet and under other technicat income or expense account in the income statement.
Regarding to this methodology, The Company has excluded amount to TL 2.001.016 in accounts in order to account as
other technical incomes for year of 2011 within notified liabilities.

(4) As disclosed in Note 2.15, in certain branches, regarding the expenses with respect to the traffic accident related medical
care services provided after enforcement of the Law, the Company is required to cede a certain amount of premiums
written within the period of January 1 - December 31, 2014 to SSI to be determined in accordance with the Communiqué
numbered 2011/17 and 2012/6 numbered Sector Notice. Based on the aforementioned regulations, the Company has
recorded the amount of the premiums to be ceded to S51 as TI.. 19.616.808 as of January 1 - December 31, 2014 (January I
- December 31, 2013: TL 24.718.602) and calculated an reinsurance share of unearned premium reserve amounting to TL
10.980.588 as of Decemberr 31, 2014 (December 31, 2013: TL 16.536.498). The amount of ceded premiums to 551 is
classified under the account “Payables to 551 regarding treatment expenses - short term” and the payments made till
December31, 20 t4 are excluded from that account.

(5) In accordance with the 2012/3 numbered Communique, the Company has recalculated the certain amount of premiums to
be ceded to 551 in relation with the policies issued after February 25, 2011 tilt the effective date of the regulation August
26, 2011 in “Compulsory Transportation”, “Compulsory Traffic” and “Compulsory Motor Personal Accident” branches
according to the fixed prices designated in accordance with the vehicle types in 2012/3 numbered Communique. Based on
the aforementioned regulations, the Company has recorded the additional amount of the premiums to be ceded to 551 as TL
1.364.930 as of January 1— December 31, 2014.

(6) In accordance with the Communiqué numbered 2011/17 and 2012/4, the difference between the respective liability amount
notified by Treasury to the companies and the amount calculated as a result of the abovementioned calculations with
respect to the related period is accounted for under “Payables to 551 regarding medical expenses” in balance sheet and
charged to other technical income or expense account in income statement. In this context, the Company has added TL
502.274 to the related liability account by considering the January 1 —December 31, 2014 liability and recognized a
corresponding amount of income in the current period “Other Technicat Income”. The provision calculated in accordance
with the abovementioned principles with respect to the claims related to treatment expenses dated before the enforcement
of the Law for the charges to be received in the subsequent years will be determined in accordance with the liability
notifications by Treasury in 2013 and 2014 and the difference between the calculated provision and finalised liability will
be accounted for under the income statements of related periods.
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19. Trade and Other Payables, Deferred Income (Continued)

19.2 Related Parties

Details related with related party balances and transactions for the current financial period are
disclosed in Note 45.

20. Payables

Insurance Technical Reserves December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Unearned Premiums Reserve- Net (*) 566.154.357 539.546.893
Unexpired Risks Reserve- Net 10.218.793 9.189.638
Outstanding Claims Reserve-Net (*9 303.791.202 214.346.852
Mathematical Reserves-Net 1.972.202 2.167.174
Equalization Reserve-Net 38.577.088 30.723.954
Total 920.713.642 795.974.511

(*) While calculating the income statement effect of the provisions for unearned premiums, TL 4.793.020,
the deferral effect of the premiums transferred to assistance companies, which is included in operating
expenses, has been netted off (December 31, 2013: TL 3.414.886).

As disclosed in note 2.15, the reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums includes SSI share as of December
31, 2014 which is TL 10.980.588 (December 31, 2013: TL 16.536.498).

(**) Company owns clean cut agreement in motor own damage branch, according to the agrrement the
premium and claim disposals for 2013 has taken part on December 31, 2013. According to the same
agreements the portfolio additions have been made within the year 2014. The effect of portfolio additions
TL 1.355.476 in 2014 netted — off from outstanding claims (note 4.1.2.3) (December 31, 2013: TL
7.048.798).

Unearned Premium Reserve:
December31, 2014

Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 761.101.163 (221.554.270) 539.546.893
Net Change 69.379.108 (42.771.644) 26.607.464

End of the Period 830.480.271 (264.325.914) 566.154.357

December 31, 2013
Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 631.424.993 (183.310.985) 448.114.008
Net Change 129.676.169 (38.243.284) 91.432.885

End of the Period 761.101.163 (221.554.269) 539.546.893
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20. Payables (Continued)

Unexpired Risk Reserve:
December 31, 2014

Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 30.907.209 (21.717.572) 9.189.638
Net Change (11.732.578) 12.761.734 1.029.155

End of the Period 19. 174.631 (8.955.838) 10.218.793

December 31, 2013
Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 12.224.918 (2.204.046) 10.020.873
Net Change 18.682.291 (19.513.526) (831.235)

End of the Period 30.907.209 (21.717.572) 9.189.638

Equalization Reserve:
December 31, 2014

Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 30.723.954 - 30.723.954
Net Change 7.853.134 - 7.853.134

End of the Period 38.577.088 - 38.577.088

December 31, 2013
Gross Reinsurance Share Net

Beginning of the Period, January 1 22.199.697 - 22.199.697
Net Change 8.524.256 - 8.524.256

End of the Period 30.723.954 - 30.723.954

Outstanding Claims Reserve:

The movement of Outstanding Claims Reserve are presented in Note 4.1.2.3.
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21. Deferred Income Tax

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences
arising between its financial statements as reported for Turkey Accounting Standards (TAS)
purposes and its statutory tax financial statements. These differences usually result in the
recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for TAS.

Tax rate is applied as 20% for the calculation of deferred tax asset and liabilities. The details of
deferred tax are presented in Note 35.

22. Retirement and Welfare Liabilities

Provisional Article 23 of the Banking Act No: 5411 requires the transfer of pension funds,
which are established for employees of financial institutions, insurance and reinsurance
companies under Social Security Act, to Social Security Institution (“SSI”) as of the effective
date of the Act within 3 years and principles and procedures of fund transfer are also prescribed
in accordance with the Council of Ministers’ order no: 2006/11345 issued on 30 November
2006. However, transfer requirement in the related Act was annulled based on the application
made by the Turkish President on November 2, 2005 in accordance with the order of the
Constitutional Court (no: E.2005/39, K.2007/33) issued on March 22, 2007 as effective from the
date of publishment in the Official Gazette no: 26479 on March 31, 2007.

On the other hand, the Act No: 5754 “Amendments in Social Securities and General Health
Insurance Acts Specific Laws and Related Requirements” published in the Official Gazette No:
26870 on May 8, 2008, requires the transfer of participants or beneficiaries of pension funds to
SSI as of the effective date of the Act within 3 years and prescribes the extension period of the
transfer as maximum of two years upon the order of Council of Ministers.

The Act prescribes that, as of the transfer date, present value of fund liabilities should be
measured by considering the fund income and expense based on the insurance branches
presented in the related act using 9,8% of technical interest rate in the actuarial calculation. The
Act also specifies that the uncovered other rights and compensations of participants or
beneficiaries of pension funds should be covered by institutions that made the fund transfers.

Aksigorta A.S. is a member of Akbank T.A.S Pension Fund (Akbank T.A.S Tekatit Sandigi). At
each period-end, the Company pays its liability calculated for its share to the pension fund. As
the result of the actuarial calculations made in relation to the Pension Fund of Alcbank T.A.~.
established in accordance with Article 20 of the Social Securities Act No: 506, the Company has
no deficits by the end of the current period and no payments have been made in relation to any
deficit amount by the Company. Fund assets are adequate in covering all the funds liabilities;
therefore, the Company management anticipates no liabilities to be assumed in relation to the
above-mentioned matter.
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22. Retirement and Welfare Liabilities (continned)

Retirement Pay Provisions:

Under the terms of Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment termination
benefits to each employee who has qualified for such payment. Also, employees are entitled to
retirement pay provisions subsequent to the completion of their retirement period by gaining a
right to receive retirement payments in accordance with the amended Article 60 of the applicable
Social Insurance Law No: 506 and the related Decrees No: 2422 and 4447 issued on 6 March
1981 and August 25, 1999, respectively. Some transitional provisions related to pre-retirement
service term was excluded from the law since the related law was amended as of May 23, 2002.

Employee termination benefits provisions are legally not a subject of funding. The provision has
been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 (“Employee Benefits”) requires actuarial
valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit
plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of the total
liability:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase
parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after
adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying
financial statements as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the provision has been
calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of the employees. The provisions as at December 31, 2014 have been
calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 6% (December 31, 2013: 6,2%) and a discount
rate of 7,7% (December31 2013: 9,9%), resulting in a real interest rate of approximately 2%
(December 31, 2013: 3,5%). The anticipated rate of forfeitures is considered and estimated rate of
the Company’s retirement pay is also taken into account.

As the maximum liability is updated semi annually, as of December 31, 2014, the maximum
amount of TL 3.541,37 effective from January 1,2015 has been taken into consideration in
calculation of provision from employment termination benefits (December 31, 2013 : TL
3.254,44).

Movement of employee termination benefits provisions are presented in the statement below:

Beginning of the Period, January 1
Charge for the Period
Actuarial Gain/Loss
Retirement Payments (-)

End of the Period

December31, 2014 December 31, 2013

2.244.706 2.290.103
287.135 701.041

1.200.112 640.558
(918.651) (1.386.996)
2.813.302 2.244.706
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23. Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals

23.1 Provisions related to employee benefits and others

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Security Social Security

Unused Vacation Premiums Unused Vacation Premiums
Provisions Payable Provisions Payable

Beginning of the Period, January 1 1.516.928 1.347.006 1.625.430 99.887
Movements in the Current Period (156.621) (19.443) (108.502) 1.247.119
End of the Period, December 31 1.360.307 1.327.563 1.516.928 1.347.006

23.2 Contingent Liabilities

Company’ s statement of pledges and commitments as of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013 are presented below:

Dccemltr 31, 2014 ~cenber3l, 2013
Annunt in Anrunt in

Original Amunt Original Antunt
Cdllaterals, Pledges and Moitgages Uven by the Conpany ((PM) Ornency (TL) Oanency (TI..)

A. Total anvunt of(PMs given on behalf of the Conpany legalentity . - - -

B. Total anrunt of CPMs given in favor ofjoint ventutes included in hill
consolidation -

C Total anruot of CPMs given as the guarantee of the third patties’ debts for
the nuintenance pulpose of the ottlinary activities 36.630 74.222

TL 23.~ 23.6W 61.7~ 61.7w
USI) 5.878 13.630 5.867 12.522

D.Total annunt ofother(PMs given 563.918 11.156.6W
i. Total aimunt of O’Ms given in favor of the parent conpany . -

ii. Total anount of CPMs given in favorof othergroup conpanies
not includedinclauses Band C -

iii. Total anrunt of(PMs given in favorof third parties
not included in clause C 563.918 11.156.6W

U. 563.918 563.918 11.156.6W 11.156.6W
Total &0.548 11.230.831

There is no ratio of CPMs given by the Company to the equity (December 31, 2013 : None).
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23. Other Liabilities and Expense Accruals (Continued)

23.3 Provisions, Contingents Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Outstanding Claims under Litigation (9 122.813.636 83.510.317
Total 122.813.636 83.510.317

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Subrogation Receivable Litigations, Gross 50.090.760 40.289.610
Trade Receivable Litigations and Executions 12.883.105 10.883.230
Total 62.973.865 51.172.840

(*) As disclosed in note 2.1.1, as of December 31, 2014 net amount of discount was made over outstanding claim
amount is TL 14.779.206 (December 31, 2013: 11.893.970Th).

(**) As of June 24, 2014, Tax Inspection Board of T.C. Ministry of Finance has launched a limited tax investigation
related to the Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax for the years 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and as a consequence
of the tax inspection, tax of TL 1,8 million and tax penalty of TL 2,8 million for the year 2009, tax of TL 2 millinn
and tax penalty of TL 3 million for the year 2010 , tax of TL 3 million and tax penalty of TL 4,6 million for the year
2011 and tax of TL 4,3 million and tax penalty of TL 6,4 million for the year 2012 and in total tax and tax penalty of
27,9 million related to Banking Insurance Transaction Tax were imposed to the Company. The Company has not
booked any provision in the financial statements since it believes that its practice is in compliance with the
regulations. On January 16, 2015, the Company filed a reconciliation request to the Large Taxpayers Office
Commission of Reconciliation for the tax and tax penalty for the year 2009 and is currently preparing to file a similar
reconciliation request regarding the tax and tax penalty for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012.

(***) The Company was subject to tax investigation in the year 2012 regarding corporate tax calculation for the year 2010
and additional tax amounting to TL 60,9 million and related penalty amounting toTh 91,4 million were charged to
the Company on February 4,2013. The tax investigation was related to the spin off transaction which was subject to
tax investigation in 2010. The tax charged to the Company as a result of the tirst investigation in 2010 amounting to
TL 101,5 million and the tax penalty amounting to TL 152,3 million were reconciled with the Ministry of Finance,
where the tax penalty amounting to TL 152,3 million was waived, the total tax burden of Th 101,5 million was
decreased to TL 8,5 million and paid in the year 2011. The Company appealed for a reconciliation settlement process
on March 4, 2013. No reconciliation was provided in the meeting held between the Company and the Ministry of
Finance Central Reconciliation Commission on October 10, 2013 and the Company filed a lawsuit by the Tax Court
as of October 24, 2013. As a result of the judgment made by the 6th Tax Court of Istanbul, the court decided with its
judgement dated June 19, 2014 that the tax assessment with penalty levied to the plaintiff was unlawful and cancelled
the respective tax assessment

23.4 Provision for Expense Accruals

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Commission provision 9.312.517 6.939.180
Performance premium provision 2.286.276 4.341.964
Expense provision 1.065.946 1.362.226
Unused vacation provision 1.360.307 1.516.928
Guarantee fund provision 2.005.064 2.420.461
Other 1.893.922 949.670
Total 17.924.032 17.530.429
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24. Net Insurance Premium Revenue

Financial Losses
A ccident
General Liability
Transportation
Legal Protection
Water Crafts
Breach of Trust
Support
Credit
Air Crafts

January 1-
December 31,2014

502.452.125
218 .657 .530
199.744.059
127.657.490
81.994.812
30.930.531
19.7 10.308
17 .03 1. 15 1
13.802.868
4.023.171
1.106.885

494.10 1
218.863
160 .45 3

574

July 1-

December 31, 2013

434. 085 .7 94
239 .04 1. 113
183.267.704
111.36 1.576

60 .706 .470
36. 127 .7 97
17 .339 .963
16.025.146
10.646.825

3 .3 70. 636
837.340
329.955
22 1.893
139.94 1

478

25. Fee Income

None (December 31, 2013:None).

26. Investment Income/(Expense)

27.

January 1- July 1-

Non-life Branches
Motor Own Damage
Motor Vehicles Liability
Health
Fire and N atural Disaster
General Losses

Air Crafts Liability (23.024) 282
Total N on-life B ranches 1.217.961.897 1.113.502.913
Life 17.722 27.110
Total 1 .2 1 7.979. 6 1 9 1 . 1 1 3 .5 30.023

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Interest Income 74.533.314 50.934.151
Rent Income 155.949 297.399
Total 74.689.263 51.231.550

Net Accrual Income on Financial Assets

January 1- July 1-

Financial Assets Available for Sale December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Valuation differences recognized
under shareholders’ equity 4.474.315 (5.495.752)
Total 4.474.315 (5.495.752)
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28. Assets Held At Fair Value through Profit and Loss

The net gain which is booked in income statement from the fair value difference reflected to
gain or loss of the financial assets, is amounting to TL 17. 197.583.as of December 31,2014
(January 1 - December 31, 2013: TL 9.684.675)

29. Insurance Rights and Demands

Januaryl- July 1-

Outstanding Claims Reserve Expenses December 31,2014 December31, 2013
Legal Protection 748.789 (1.335.935)
General Losses 72.804 (930.125)
Air Crafts Liability 832 (918)
Water Crafts (119.657) 37.046
Breach of Trust (143.625) (39.204)
Credit (146.092) (38.788)
Accident (662.017) 838.539
Financial Losses (773.263) 498.517
Transportation (1.252.139) (1.602.783)
Fire and Natural Disaster (6.190.443) 587.358
Health (7.178.427) (1.201.600)
Motor Own Damage (12.118.258) 11.542.904
General Liability (21.201.734) (17.679.576)
Motor Vehicles Liability (39.162.645) (9.442.092)
Total Non-life (88.125.875) (18.766.657)
Life 43.782 (31.501)
Total (*) (88.082.093) (18.798. 158)

(*) For current previous period comparison please refer to note 4.1.2.4.

30. Investment Agreement Rights

None (December 31, 20l3:None).

31. Mandatory Other Expenses

Types of expenses are disclosed in Note 32.
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32. Expense Types
January 1-

December 31,2014
(283.640.03 8)

(61. 927 .5 02)
(10.753.2 12)

(6 .462 .52 8)
(4.266.192)
(4.245.122)
(3. 29 8 .5 92)
(3 .206 .3 3 9)
(2.18 1.190)
(2.032. 222)
(1.444.29 1)
63 .4 16. 172

July 1-
December 31, 2013

(244.356.483)
(56.236.328)

(8 .4 12. 82 1)
(2.985.681)
(4.271.695)
(7 .484.79 8)
(2.901.676)
(2.509.326)
(1. 972.02 1)
(1. 920.792)
(1.255.894)
53 .5 77. 85 1
(6.6 87.164)

(2 87 .4 16. 82 8)

(*) The Company makes payments to pension contribution (3% of the monthly gross salary) for
the employees who fulfill conditions and this amount is presented in employees wages and
expenses.

33. Employee Benefit Expenses

Salary and Bonus Payments
Insurance Payments
Other Payments

January 1-

December 31,2014
(58.745.957)

(794.998)
(2.386.547)

July 1-

December 31,2013
(52.587.074)

(661.583)
(2.987.671)

Total (Note 32) (61.927.502) (56.236.328)

34. Financing Costs

34.1 Financial Expenses:

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

34.2 Current period’ s financial expenses related to shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries

None (January 1 — December 31, 2013: None).

34.3 Sales transactions with shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries

Disclosed in Note 45

Production Commissions (-)

Employee Wages and Expenses (-) (‘~‘)
Information Technology Expenses (-)

Rent Expenses (-)

Transportation Expenses (-)

Meeting and Training Expenses (-)

Social Relief Expenses (-)

Repair and Maintenance Expenses (-)

O utsourcing Service Expenses (-)

Advertisement Expenses (-)

Communication Expenses (-)

Reinsurance Commissions (+)
Other (-) (5.117.965)
Total (325.159.021)
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34. Financing Costs (Continued)

34.4 Interest, rent and similar balanceswith shareholders, affiliates and subsidiaries:

Disclosed in Note 45

34.5 Hedge accounting principle

In accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in Note 2.25, the Company recognized
changes in valuation of hedge instrument arising from change in the exchange rate under equity.
In this respect, as of December 31, 2014 effect of hedge accounting amount of TL (1.338.054)
has been recognized in the “Special Funds (Reserves)” account item under equity.

Deposit Exchange rate at the Exchange rate at the end of Hedging cash
amount Currency type beginning of the period the period flow

19.746.971 USD 2,2342 2,3189 (1.672.568)

Type risk and principle of the cash flow hedge

The Company aims to prevent the future foreign exchange risk resulting from the operational
leases by hedging USD 19.746.971 Eurobond.

34.6 Exchange differences, other than those arising from financial assets held at fair value
through profit and loss.

None (January 1 - December 31, 2013: None).

35. Income Tax

Current Tax Liability
Corporate Tax Liability Provision on Period Profit
Prepaid Taxes and Other Liabilities on Period Profit (-)

Tax (Expense) I Income is Formed by the Items Below:

Current Tax Income I (Expense)

Deferred Tax Income I (Expense) due to Temporary Differences

Total Tax Income / (Expense)

31 December2014 31 December2013

7.541.703 25.734.660
(5.860.722) (18.278.602)

1.680.981 7.456.058

January 1- July 1-

December 31, 2014 Decenter3l, 2013

(7.541.703)

(168. 869)

(7.710.572)

(25.734.660)
4.480.546

(21. 254. 114)
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35. Corporate Tax (Continued)

Deferred Tax

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences
arising between its financial statements as reported for TFRS purposes and its statutory tax
financial statements. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and
expenses in different reporting periods for TFRS and tax purposes and they are given below.
Tax rate is applied as 20% for the calculation of deferred tax asset and liabilities.

Deferred Tax
Recognized in the Shareholders’ Equity:

Valuation of Financial Assets Available for Sale
Cash flow hedging
Actuarial loss

2014 2013

209.529 1.328.108
(334.514) -

240.022 128.112
115.037 1.456.220

Items that are subject to deferred tax and corporate tax are summarized as follows:

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) Decenter 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Impairment Provision for Affiliates 4.431.080 4.431.080
Technical reserves 2.897.939 2.415.323
Marketable securities valuation difference 209.529 1.328.109
Performance bonus provision 457.255 868.393
Expense Provision 11.357 277.260
Doubtful receivable provisions 427.000 373.271
Retirement pay provision 562.660 448.942
Unused vacation provision 272.061 303.386
Useful life differences of tangible and intangible assets 90.000 88.655
Cash flow hedge (334.514) -

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities), Net 9.024.367 10.534.419

Januaryl-Decenter3l, January 1-Decenter3l,
Movements of Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities): 2014 2013

Beginning of the Period, January 1 10.534.419 4.551.823
Deferred Tax Income Recognized in the Income Statement (168.869) 4.480.546
Deferred Tax Income Recognized in the Shareholders’ Equity (1.341.183) 1.502.050
End of the Period, December 31 9.024.367 10.534.419
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35. Corporate Tax (Continued)

Reconciliation of period tax expense with netincome for the period is as below:

Income Before Tax 38.318.054 181.029.153
Tax Calculated: 20% (7.663.611) (36.205.831)
Effect of Additions (10.935.005) (12.714.987)
Effect of Aflowances, net 11.056.913 23.186.158
Current Tax Income? (Expense) (7.541.703) (25.734.660)

36. Net Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss

Recognized in Profit? Loss:
Foreign Exchange Income
Foreign Exchange Expense

37. Earnings per Share

Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
Beginning Period, 1 January

Number of Equity Shares Issued in Cash

Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
End of Period, December 31

Weighted Average Number of Outstanding Shares
(Unit of 1; 0,01 TL)

Net Profit for the Period I (Loss) (TL)
Earnings / (Loss) per Share (TL)

2014 2013
30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000
30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000

30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000
30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000

30.600.000.000 30.600.000.000

29.029.662 159.775.039
0,095 0,522

The Company has decided to submit the distribution of TL 23.959.800 to the General Assembly for approval;
excluding the gain on fixed assets amounting to TL4.221.995 from the net profit for the period as of February 13,
2015

38. Dividends per share

Pursuant to the decision taken in the Company’s Ordinary General Meeting held on March 28,
2014, all of the net profit consisted in financial statements which represents 2013 operating
results have been distributed to shareholders after legal reserves are calculated over. The amount
that distributed starting from April 1,2014 is TL 60.679.800 and profit per share is TL 0,20.

January 1-December31, Januaiy 1- Decenther3l,
2014 2013

January 1- July I-

December3l,2014 Decenter3l,2013

43.807.663 46.515.202
(37.383.268) (29.511.004)

6.424.395 17.004.198
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39. Cash Generated from the Operations

Cash flow statement has presented with the financial statements of the Company.

40. Equity Share Convertible Bonds

None (December 31, 2013:None).

41. Cash Convertible Privilleged Equity Shares

None (December 31, 2013:None).

42. Risks

The Company’s contingent asset and liabilities are presented in Note 23.3.

43. Commitments

Total amount of off balance sheet commitments are presented in Note 23.2.

44. Business Combinations

None (December 31, 2013:None).

45. Related Parties

The details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below:

Related Party Receivables I (Payables)
January 1- January 1-

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Shareholders 10.239 42.019

Related Parties 18.790.344 13.939.975
Total 18.800.583 13.981.994

(9 Amount TL 71.723 (December 31, 2013: TL 67.314) of related party receiveable balance is presented
under “Other Related Party Receivable” line of financial statements. Rest of the balance is presented
under “Receiveable from Insurance Operations” line of financial statements.

Premium production

January 1- January 1-

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Shareholders 2.421.349 1.063.424

Related Parties 133.906.453 110.767.233

Total 136.327.802 111.830.657
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45. Related Parties (Continued)

Claims Paid
January 1- January 1-

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Shareholders 1.741.614 16.018
Related Parties 33.407.815 51.345. 134
Total 35.149.429 51.361.152

Related party financial assets

Bank Deposit

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Related Parties 535.553.520 277.661.529
Total 535.553.520 277.661.529

Private Sector Debt Securities

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Related Parties 29.935.210 16.782.390
Total 29.935.210 16.782.390

Investment Funds
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Related Parties 72.353.462 24.000.004
Total 72.353.462 24.000.004

Interest Income Received from Related Parties

January 1- January 1-

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Related Parties 32.158.565 18.420.568
Total 32. 158.565 18.420.568

Payables to shareholders balance includes dividends that have not yet been taken by the shareholders.
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46. Subsequent Events

None.

47. Other

Details of “Other” items in the balance sheet which exceed 20% of its respective account group
of 5% of total assets:

Other receivables December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Receivables from Tarim Sigortalan AS. 1.849.582 2.852.394
Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool premiums receivables from agencies 1.513.756 2.815.831
Receivables from H.O. Sabanci Vakfi 1.600.000 -

Other receivables 2.749.761 18.055
Total 7.713.099 5.686.280

Other short term payables December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Payables to contracted enterprises 13.491,799 11.359.603
Payables to Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool 11.527.206 10.648.998
Payables to suppliers 2.535.941 4.399.758
Turkish Catastrophe Insurance Pool payables to agencies 525.595 505.882
Other 679. 152 539. 143
Total 28.759.693 27.453.384

Short term other prepaid expenses December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Prepaid Rent Expenses 4.426.799 -

Other 671.947 1.718.462
Total 5.098.746 1.718.462

Long term other prepaid expenses December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Prepaid Expenses (*) 1.784.100 -

Total 1.784.100 -

(*)The amount of TL 4.270.309 in short term prepaid expenses and amount of TL 1.778.320 in long
term prepaid expenses has arised from operational leases of the Company.
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47. Other (Continued)

Income and Profit / Expenses and Losses from January 1- July 1-
Other and Extraordinary Activities December 31, 2014 December 31,2013
Provisions Account (+1-) (15.698.586) (41.292.793)

Provision for impairment of affiliates - (22.155.402)
Provisions for doubtful receivable (6.967.112) (5.763.877)
Retirement pay provision (927.692) (701.041)
Donation Provision (1.900.000) (9.500.000)
Portfolio Management (903.037) -

Unused vacation Provision 156.621 108.502
Provisions for other expenses (5. 157.366) (3.280.975)

Compulsory earthquake insurance account (+1-) 483.204 267.461
Deferred tax asset account (+1-) (168.869) 4.480.546
Other income and profit 6.707.228 116.241.189

Gain on property sale (*) 5.629.327 114.925.418
Other 1.077.901 1.315.771

Other expenses and losses (-) (7.527.980) (8.495.660)
Disallowable expence (3.244.924) -

Bank Expenses (3.574.966) (4.015.928)

Property sales expense (242.53 1) (3.245.054)

Other (465.559) (1.234.678)
Total (16.205.003) 71.200.743

(*) The Company, According to the declarations dated November 20, 2008, numbered 27060 and issued as serial
number 3th of Turkish Corporate Tax General Communique, exiuded amount of TL 4.221.995 at the rate of %75 of
TL 5.952.701 profit is booked under the equity as a special fund account booked from the sale of Headquarters Office
is classified in balance Sheet for the year of 2015.
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AKSiGORTA ANONIM SinKEri
Profit Distribution Statement

Audited
Current Period Audited

(01/01/2014 - Current Period
Note 31/12/2014) (01/01/2013 - 31/12/2013)

L Distribution of profit for the period - -

1.1. Profit ror the period 38.318.054 181.029.153

1.2. Taxes payable and legal liabilities (7.7 10.572) (21.254.114)

1.2.1. Corporation tax (Income Lax) (7.541.703) (25.734.660)

1.2.2. Income tax deduction - -

1.2.3. Other taxes and legal liabilities (168.859) 4.480.546

A. Net profit for the period (1.1 . 1.2) 30.607.482 159.775.039

1.3. Previous years losses C-) - 125.912

1.4. First legal reserve (1.530.374) (7.988.752)

l.5.Legai reserves kept tn the company (-) - -

1.6.Gain on sales to be transfered (4.221.995) (86.694.419)

B. Net distributable Profit for the period ( (a - (1.3 + 1.4 + 1.5)) 24.855.113 65.091.868

1.6.Ftrst dividend to shareholders (-) 15.300.000 15.300.000

1.5.1. To common shareholders 15.300.000 15.300.000

1.6.2. To preferred shareholders - -

1.6.3 To owners of participatingredeemed shares - -

1.6.4 To nwners of proUst-sharing securities - -

1.6.5 To owners of profit and loss sharing securities - -

1.7. Dividends to personnel (-) - -

1.8. Dividends to founders (-) - -

1.9. Dividends to board of directors (-) - -

1.10. Second dividends to shareholders (-) 8.659.800 45.253.888

1.10.1. To common shareholders 8.659.800 45.253.888

1.10.2. To preferred shareholders - -

1.10.3. To owners of participating redeemed shares - -

1.10.4. To owners of prom-sharing securities - -

1.10.5. To owners of profit and loss sharingsecurities - -

1.1 1. Second legal reserve (-) (868.647) (4.537.980)

1.12. Statutory reserves (-) . -

1.13. Extraordinary reserves 26.666 -

1. 14. Other reserves - -

1.15.Specialfunds - -

11. Distribution from resents - -

2.1.distributed reserves - -

2.2.second legal reserve (-) -

2.3.dtvidends to shareholders (-) -

2.3.1. To common shareholders - -

2.3.2 To preferred shareholders - -

2.3.3. To owners of pm ieipatingredeemed shores - -

2.3.4 To owners of profit-sharing securities - -

2.3.5 To owners of profit and loss sharing securities - -

2.4.Dividends to employees (-) - -

2.5.Dividends to board of directors (-) - -

III. Profit perslsare - -

3.l.To common shareholders 0,0783 0.1983

3.2.To common shareholders (%) - -

3.3.To preferred shareholders - -

3.4.To preferred shareholders (%) . -

IV. Di.idends pershare - -

4.l.To common shareholders 23.959.800 60.679.800

4.2.To common shareholders (Sb) - -

4.3. To preferred shareholders - -

4.4.To preferred shareholders (Sb) - -

The amount of TL 4.221.995 arising from 75% of the gain on sale of associates and fixed assets which has been
set aside to be recognized in the “Non-Distributable Profit for the Period” account item under equity has not been
taken into account in the profit for the year 2014 pursuant to Article 5 of the Corporate Tax Law 5520. General
Assembly is the responsible body for profit distribution and General Assembly was not held as of the preparation
date of the financial statements.
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